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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid

market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the

Company’s website at www.gca.com.hk.
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AREH
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
ETR®E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to present
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the

year ended 31 March 2012.

PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group recorded turnover of HK$68.3 million,
representing a 22.8% increase comparing with the HK$55.6 million in 2011.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$10.3 million, down
59.4% over the HK$25.4 million last year. Basic earnings per share was

HK$2.15, versus HK$6.78 in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the world was still under threat of economic
recession. Even the European sovereign-debt crisis was smoothed over some
measures implemented by European Union, the Western countries were
still struggling in finding ways to steer their economies back to the path of
recovery. On the other hand, China is gearing up for an investment spree,
such as stimulating infrastructure spending and domestic consumption, to
counter a global slowdown and shore up a faltering domestic economy.
Against this backdrop, corporations were generally cautious in expanding

their scale of operation.

Despite the undulant global economic situation, our overall services income
increased during the year as compared to last year owing to our growing

client base.

Our services are broadly categorised into two main sectors: (i) asset advisory

services and asset appraisal; and (ii) corporate services and consultancy.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

Asset advisory services and asset appraisal are the core business of the
Group, which typically involves provision of independent valuation services
to a number of listed groups to meet market, regulatory and fiduciary
requirements, sourcing and identifying potential investment opportunities or
investors, undertaking due diligence and evaluation on the underlying assets

and provision of procedural and strategic business advices.

Asset advisory services income is primarily success-based nature and is usually
calculated based on a percentage of the value of the underlying asset or
the consideration agreed between the parties in the underlying transaction.
During the year, asset advisory services income was approximately HK$22.7
million, remained at same level as last year. Our asset appraisal services
income decreased in 2012 mainly due to the drop in mergers and acquisitions
related appraisal engagements, which were primary brought by the lack
of optimism in the global economy and the volatile financial and capital
markets. Consequently, our revenue from asset advisory services and asset
appraisal was approximately HK$49.7 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 5.4% as compared to last year.

The corporate services and consultancy segment mainly focuses on provision
of advice to corporations in areas such as corporate governance, internal
control, enterprise risk management and other operational aspects as well as
provision of back office administration, which includes company secretarial
services, human resources management and administrative services,
accounting and tax services, etc. Owing to our growing client base, revenue
generated from this segment amounted to approximately HK$18.7 million
in 2012, marking an increase of approximately 496.8% as compared to last

year.

On 31 May 2011, the Company’s shares were successfully listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange. The listing of the Company’s shares has strengthen
the Group's financial position to pursue its objectives to being the one of
the leading integrated professional services providers in the Greater China

region.
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
ETR®E

As highlighted in our interim report, the Group successfully completed the
acquisition of TodaylR Holdings Limited (“TodaylR"). TodayIR has a client
portfolio of over 260 listed companies and is one of the largest online
investor relations platforms in Asia. The acquisition provided the Group
with a good opportunity to expand its network for all its business activities,
develop new market, achieve economy of scale and a wider range of services
in its provision of corporate services business. The acquisition also gave
the Group the ability to cross-sell corporate and investor relations services
and to develop bundling opportunities for those services, which is line with
the Group's strategy to establish itself as a one-stop professional services

provider.

PROSPECT

The global economy still faces great challenges. While the momentum
for European and US economic recovery is yet to be restored, China also
announced a GDP growth target lower than before, implying decelerated
investments in certain spheres in China’s economy. However, under The State
Council’s 12th Five-Year Plan, China identified seven strategic emerging
industries to ensure a fast and stable economic growth. Therefore, China is

still playing a dominant role on the world’s stage.

Despite the growth in our traditional asset advisory services and asset
appraisal business would be affected by the undulant global economic
situation, demand for professional commercial services in Greater China will
remain strong, when companies in the region, especially in China, grow in
corporate size and operational complexity and geographical diversification,
the need for a leading professional advisor on asset value, procedures
and regulations, as well as investment matching will increase. Based on
our existing competitive advantages and market position in our core
business segments, we are capable of exploring more potential expansion

opportunities.

With the continuing increase in client base through possible horizontal
acquisitions in future, expected synergies to be generated from TodayIR
acquisition, experienced professional teams and convenient one-stop
professional services provision, we will continue to capture market
opportunities and enhance the quality and scope of services in order to

deliver sustainable growth in returns to our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETR®E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the Board, our business
partners, all of our management and staff members, whose hard work and
support have made me confident that the Company is well-positioned to
sustain its robust development. The journey may be tough, but with the
unwavering dedication of our Board, management and staff, we are set to

grow stronger every step we take.

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE W&k

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2012 was approximately
HK$68.3 million (2011: approximately HK$55.6 million), representing a
increase of approximately 22.8% from that of 2011. The increase in the
Group's revenue during the year was mainly attributable to increase in
corporate services and consultancy income as described in the “Business

Review” section.

The Group's cost of services mainly consists of direct labour cost and
sub-contracting charges. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group's
direct labour cost and sub-contracting charges were approximately HK$12.8
million and HK$5.5 million respectively (2011: approximately HK$11.9
million and HK$0 million respectively), increase approximately 7.6% and N/A
respectively from that of 2011. The increased in sub-contracting charges was
primarily due to an asset advisory engagement which required project design

services provided by an independent third-party.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2012
was approximately HK$37.4 million (2011: approximately HK$15.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 147.7% from that of 2011. The
increase in the Group's administrative expenses during the year was mainly
attributable to increased in administrative staff cost and rental expenses.
During the year, the Group's administrative staff cost was approximately
HK$17.6 million (2011: approximately HK$6.2 million), representing an
increase of approximately 183.9% from that of 2011. During the year,
the Group's rental expenses was approximately HK$4.8 million (2011:
approximately HK$3.3 million), representing an increase of approximately

45.5% from that of 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE W&k

During the year, the Company has granted to the eligible participants under
the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 May 2011 the
options to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company. The exercise price of the share
options shall be HK$0.20 each. Moreover, during the year, Brilliant One
Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company, has
placed down 16,425,000 shares of the Company to reward certain members
of the senior management team of the Company. Therefore, the Company
equity-settled share-based payment expenses for the year ended 31 March

2012 was approximately HK$3.3 million (2011: Nil).

Therefore, the increase in cost of services and administrative expenses
were primarily due to the newly incurred equity-settled share-based
payment expenses and business expansion, especially into the segment of
corporate services and consultancy, resulting in increase in direct labour
cost, administrative staff cost and directors” emoluments, employment of

additional sales team and increase in rental expenses.

Accordingly, the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$10.3 million (2011:
approximately HK$25.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately
59.4% from that of 2011. By excluding the non-cash and non-operating
share-based payment expenses, the profit attributable to owners would be

HK$13.6 million, representing a decrease of 46.5% from that of 2011.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group's businesses is in Hong Kong and is denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, and United States dollars. The Group is of
the opinion that its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is limited. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors closely foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$37.1 million (31 March 2011: HK$8.7 million). As at 31
March 2012, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$70.8
million (31 March 2011: HK$35.1 million). Current ratio as at 31 March 2012
was 6.5 (31 March 2011: 3.1).

The Group's operations and investments are financed principally by revenues
generated from business operations, available bank balances and the net
proceeds from the placing of the Company’s new shares in the listing. As at
31 March 2012, the Group had no borrowing and a zero gearing ratio (31
March 2011: Nil), which is defined as net debt (total borrowings net of cash

and bank balances) over total equity, is resulted.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$1.5 million (2011:

HK$1.1 million) for acquisition of plant and equipment.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any significant capital

commitments.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's bank deposits in the amount of HK$1
million (31 March 2011: Nil) were pledged to secure banking facilities of
HK$2 million granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W R DA

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group employed 66 (31 March 2011: 55) full-time
employees including management and administrative staff. The employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed based on
both individual's and Company’s performance, professional and working
experience and by reference to prevailing market practice and standards. The

Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate success.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
PLACING

The acquisition of shares of TodaylR was funded by the net proceeds from
the listing and since the acquisition was only introduced to the Group
recently, it was not foreseeable at the time the business plan was formulated
and specifically disclosed in the prospectus but rather included as a part of
the business development plan. Consequently, the intended use of listing
proceeds at the time of listing did not provide any specific allocation for the
acquisition consideration. However, given the benefits of the acquisition, we
believe that the update to the intended use of net listing proceeds is justified.

The updated intended use of net listing proceeds is set out below:

ANEIR

7201243 H31H KN & E fE 664 (20114
3A31R:558) 2BEE  BREEERITHA
B-EENHH &7 RINEEETIREMEA
RARRMERR BENFEXERTIELR X
S2EERMHEN RIFERFE - AEERR
BEETRAEERNERNES —HFAREE

RARZEESHMEREFHE
A&

W EE TodayRIR 10 K & & TY A LT RS sRIB)F 3R
B AR AREERT S BB ETRIEK
PR - BUBIRT BTG BT B I R TE R B2 A
g NMARBREBZANEFERE  RIER
EBBRAEN—FH Bk R ETERD
FATERIERTE AR R ERREREOR
BB TEES AT ENRIEREN G -
AEEREEHN EWAEFEFENERTE R
TIBETE S E I E TSI F A BT
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Before completion After completion
of acquisition of acquisition
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
e B8 72 B A Wy B e B 2
(B&%ET) (B&%T)
Business development EBER
—in asset appraisal and corporate —BENHREERS
service 27.95 17.78
— in asset advisory services —BEBMERS 28.25 17.97
— in corporate consultancy business — (R EFARE 15.30 9.73
— the acquisition of shares and — U B TodayIR 2 % 17 &%

GPS warrants of TodayIR GPSIRIR & - 71.50 26.02 71.50
Improvement of public awareness RADRRH 1.00 1.00
Human resources deployment ANEIRFAR 5.50 5.50
Total st 78.00 78.00

The source of funding for the exercise of the GPS Warrant will be determined

by the Directors at the time of the exercise of the GPS Warrant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE W&k

During the period from 18 May 2011, being the latest practicable date as
defined in the prospectus, to 31 March 2012 (the “Review Period”), the net

proceeds from the Company'’s placing had been applied as follows:

K201 F5H18H (A BRERATENKE
BB A fTHHE) 20124938318 2 B9 ([E
BEHIR ) ARREEEBEFUEFHECA

RUATRE:
Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the
prospectus
and updated
intended use of
proceeds stated Actual use of
above from proceeds from
18 May 2011 to 18 May 2011 to
31 March 2012 31 March 2012
HK$ million HK$ million
BRERR
g RER
2011458188 &
201243 H831H
WEtEIAER FSRER
FHEEEFS 20114E5818BE
MIEREN 2012538318 H
BHER BEAR
BEBT BEBT
Business development ¥BERE
—in asset appraisal and corporate services —BEME R ERS 10.10 4.60
— the acquisition of shares and GPS warrants of — U BE TodayIREY B 19 &2
TodayIR GPSRR#E 7 26.02 26.02
Improvement of public awareness RADRRHE 0.20 0.03
Human resources deployment AN EIRARD 0.70 0.70
Note: B 5

The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated in the prospectus
were based on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by the
Group at the time of preparing the prospectus. The proceeds were applied in
accordance with the actual development of the market. The remaining proceeds
as at 31 March 2012 had been placed as interest bearing deposits in licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH

EBEECHEREREENLER

ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the prospectus

during the Review Period is set out below:

Business objectives for
the Review Period

REEMENERE R

REEE BRERMENELSEEZHES
M

Actual business progress for the Review Period

ROEHENERERERE

— Business development

—EHER

— Improvement of public awareness

AN EE

— Human resources deployment

—ANERFR

We have acquired 20% equity interest of TodayIR in August 2011, which enables us to
cross-sell corporate and investor relation services and develop bundling opportunities for
those services, which is in line with the Company’s stated strategy to establish itself as a
one-stop professional service provider.

AEBE 201168 A YK iETodayIRHI20% M  1E 8B < ANE BB B H R XEHE B X IR
BREEEBERS UHZSERBELAMHER S ERARTFEHITER—
WA EERBIRHAANERERE -

/

GRS
i3

We invested resources in marketing activities to enhancing our public awareness, including
organisation of professional seminars and publication of newsletters and periodicals.
FEBEERMERETTSHERS UWRALARUAEENZH EENEEN
A g R AR R E T

We have recruited additional professional staff to expand our services in Hong Kong and
China.
AEBEHEFEIEEETINBERAEBEEERTPEZ R -
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, aged 51, is one of the founding directors of the
Group and was appointed as a managing director and an executive director
of the Company in December 2010. He is the member of the remuneration
committee and the executive committee and the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for overall management and
development including frontline co-ordination with clients, organisations as
well as formulation of development strategy of the Group. Professionally,
Mr. Ip is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor, a Registered Professional Surveyor
(General Practice) under the Surveyors Registration Ordinance and a
Registered Business Valuer of the Hong Kong Business Valuation Forum.
He is now serving as a committee member of the Board of Asian Valuation

Professional Group of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

In addition, Mr. Ip was appointed as a committee member of the People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Harbin, the PRC and was elected as a
vice president of the Professional Managers Association of Guangdong in the
second half of 2011 after having received the Outstanding Entrepreneurship
Award from the Enterprise Asia, a non-governmental organisation for

entrepreneurship in mid-2011.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, aged 58, was appointed as an executive director in
December 2010. Mr. Leung is the member of the nomination committee, the
compliance officer, a member of the executive committee and the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible for overall rules and
compliances of professional services. Mr. Leung graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with the
Associateship in Building Technology and Management, has started practice
as a professional since 1980s’. He had been employed by Frank & Vargeson
(HK) as senior quantity surveyor from 1983 to 1988. During the period from
1988 to 1991, Mr. Leung was employed by Charter Time Limited, a project
management consultancy firm as project manager. From 1991 to 1998, Mr.
Leung became the director of Beria Consultants Limited, a company engaged
in quantity surveying and project management consultancy. Since 1999, Mr.
Leung became the managing director of KL Partnership Limited, a company
set up by Mr. Leung and engaged in quantity surveying and construction cost
consultancy. He has been a shareholder of the Group since 1998 and became
a director of Greater China Appraisal Limited in March 2010. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, and a
member of The Chartered Institute of Building and The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, aged 52, has been appointed by the
Company as the chairman and an independent non-executive director in
May 2011. He is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the Company.
He received his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Studies from the
University of Bradford in England and his Master of Science degree in
Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Au-Yang is a director of AsiaSoft Company Limited which is
the holding company of a group with businesses in different sectors of the
software industry. Prior to joining AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang
spent more than 20 years in the financial services sector in the Asia Pacific
region. He joined the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation group
(the "HSBC Group”) in 1985 and became a co-head of Investment Banking,
Asia Pacific of the HSBC Group in 2001. During his employment with the
HSBC Group from 1985 to 2003, Mr. Au-Yang worked on various equity
capital fund-raising exercises and merger and acquisition projects in the Asia
Pacific region. He was an executive director and the chief operating officer of
The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") during the period from 2003
to 2006. In late 2004, Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in
charge of the corporate finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is currently
an independent non-executive director of Telefield International (Holdings)

Limited, the shares of which is listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wu Chi Keung, aged 55, has been appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wu has more than 30 years
experience in auditing and financial advisory services. Mr. Wu was a partner
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu until he retired in December 2008. Mr. Wu is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Wu graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1980 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy.

Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director of China Renji
Medical Group Limited, Zhong Fa Zhan Holdings Limited, China Medical
System Holdings Limited, Jinchuan Group International Resources Co. Ltd.
and JF Household Furnishings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the

Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wan Kam To, aged 59, has been appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Wan has over 30 years of experience
in auditing and advisory services. He joined PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong in 1975 and served as a partner of the firm from 1992 until retirement
in 2008. Mr. Wan is a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant and is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Wan graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong

Polytechnic University) in 1975 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy.

Mr. Wan is currently an independent director of Mindray Medical
International Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
USA) and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ), and
the chairman of their audit committees. Mr. Wan is also an independent non-
executive director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange and
chairman/member of their audit committees, namely, China Resources Land
Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited, Fairwood Holdings Limited and
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited. Mr. Wan also served briefly as an
independent non-executive director of Real Gold Mining Limited in 2011 and

the chairman of its audit committee.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Un Kwok Kee, John, aged 45, joined the Group as its head of finance
and administration in 2010. Mr. Un has over 22 years of experience in the
financial accounting, company secretarial field, initial public offering and
auditing. Mr. Un holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
University of Wales and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Fung Mei Ling, aged 42, joined the Group in 2010 and was appointed
as the head of compliance of the Group. She is responsible for the company
secretarial matters of the Group. Ms. Fung holds a Master of Finance degree
from Curtin University of Technology. Ms. Fung is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administration. She had been the company secretary of
certain listed companies in Hong Kong and has over 10 years of experience in
the area of company secretarial. She is also currently the company secretary

and authorised representative of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited.

Mr. Chu Hiu Fung, aged 38, is the head of internal control of the Group.
Mr. Chu has over 15 years of experience in the valuation industry. From
1995 to 1997, he worked in American Appraisal Hongkong Limited as valuer
during which his duties included asset inspection, assessing asset value and
preparing valuation report. Mr. Chu was then employed by RHL International
Property Consultants as manager responsible for fixed asset valuation during
the period from 1997 to 1998. He joined the Group in 1998 as manager of
the industrial facilities division of Greater China Appraisal Limited and was
promoted to senior manager of Greater China Appraisal Limited in 2002. He
was then promoted to associate — valuation project in 2005 and assistant
vice president in 2006. He is experienced in valuation of tangible assets and
is mainly responsible for our project management, coordination and review
of other valuers” work. Mr. Chu is a member of International Association of
Consultants, Valuators and Analysts. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor degree

in Manufacturing Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheung Kam Shing, Terry, aged 49, joined the Group in 2010 and he is
currently the chief operating officer of the Company, responsible for assisting
the managing director of the Company for the day-to-day operations of
asset advisory, asset appraisal, corporate and consultancy services of the
Group. He is the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He holds
a Bachelor degree in Social Science from the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Master degree in Science from the University of London. He
has over 28 years of experience in finance industry including investment
banking, fund management, and listed companies. From 1984 to 1986, Mr.
Cheung worked in a securities company as sales executive. From 1986 to
1989, he was employed as a securities dealer by an investment management
company. Mr. Cheung was then employed by a securities company as
marketing manager during the period from 1989 to 1991. From 1991 to
1994, he worked in another securities company as manager. Mr. Cheung
was employed by a finance house from 1994 to 2000 as senior manager
responsible for equity sales activities of Hong Kong and other Asian securities
markets. From 2000 to 2005, he was appointed as the managing director
of Culturecom Holdings Limited, a company engaged in publishing at
the time, in charge of its investment department. He was responsible for
various areas including business planning, due diligence, financial analysis
and structuring transactions. During the period from 2005 to 2010, Mr.
Cheung was appointed as the managing director of a private investment
company, a company whose principal business is investment, and his duties
mainly include real estate and other direct investment. He is currently the
independent non-executive director of the China Medical System Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Li Qi, age 47, joined the Group in 2006 as the chief representative of
the Group's Beijing representative office and is the director and the legal
representative of JEZE IF 7 & RE IR (JER) AR 2 A]. She graduated
from Beijing Union University with a Bachelor degree in Science in 1986 and
obtained her Bachelor of Economics degree in Financial Accounting from
Renmin University of China in 1998. She is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC. Before joining the Group, she worked in
several accounting firms and asset appraisal firms in the PRC. In 2007, Ms. Li
worked in & EFBEARE LA A as deputy general manager. She was
then employed by dt 1 78 & ZE= 51 {& A R 2 7 as deputy general manager
in 2008 and joined dt R RIEEEE ET (LB R A F as deputy general
manager in 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to

present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and enhance its
corporate value. The Company'’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing

Rules.

Throughout the period from the date of listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange on 31 May 2011 (the “Listing Date”) to 31 March
2012, the Company had complied with the code provisions in the CG Code
with the exception of the code provision A.2.1. Details of such deviation will

be explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for overseeing
the overall strategy and development of the Company, as well as monitoring
the internal control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the
Group. The Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group with

a view to developing its business and enhancing the shareholders value.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate overall strategy,
monitor business development as well as the financial performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated certain duties and authorities to the

management for the day-to-day management of the Group's operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEHES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Ip Kwok
Kwong (managing director) and Mr. Leung Siu Hong, and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (chairman),
Mr. Wu Chi Keung and Mr. Wan Kam To. The attendance of directors at the 5
full board meetings held during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March

2012 is as follows:

BEEE® (5

EEgERAEMERTEREBR AL (B
EHEIE) RRKEREER = E B IENTT
EERMBRESE (FF)  HERITERFR
EEEEER ETAEREE201263A31 0
MARTHSAEEBESSSH ML E M
T

Attendance
Director = HERE
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong BBy EE 5
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RICEE T4 5
Independent Non-Executive Director BIHNTEE
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter 5 R B &L E 5
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FA20114F5 A 18AE & 1T)
Mr. Wu Chi Keung HAER T E 5
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FR20114F5F18HEZRT)
Mr. Wan Kam To FIREEE 5
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FA2011F5 A 18AEZET)

An executive committee of the Company was formed comprising of two
executive directors, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Mr. Leung Siu Hong and
the management, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung. The executive committee
was to enhance the day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to be run effectively and was delegated by the Board of certain duties and
authority relating to the areas in accounting operation of the Group and

contracting with outsiders in the ordinary course of business of the Group.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-executive
directors (the “INED") with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs, together with the executive Directors, ensure that the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with the relevant standards. The Company has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their

independence is in compliance the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The term of appointment of each INED is for a period of three years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of

the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not at present have any officer
with the title of chief executive officer (the “CEQ") but instead the duties of
a CEO are performed by Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, the managing director of the
Company, in the same capacity as the CEO of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The Company has
confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings throughout the period
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in May 2011. The terms
of reference of the remuneration committee has been revised in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code of the GEM Listing Rules in 2012. The
remuneration committee comprises one executive director and two INEDs,
namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi
Keung. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Chi Keung.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are formulating
remuneration policies, making recommendations on the remuneration
packages of executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors. The directors are remunerated with reference to their respective
duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and

the current market situation.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012, the remuneration
committee held two meetings to review the remuneration policy and review
and approve the remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior

management of the Company.
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TRERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The members and attendance of the two meetings of the remuneration

committee during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012 are as

FMEES (&)

FTMEZEeME MR ETHERE20129F3A
BTEHBARETHMASHENTE ST

follows:
Attendance
Director Bx HERE
Mr. Wu Chi Keung HAER T E 2
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FR20114F5A18HEZRT)
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong BB EE 2
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter 5 R B &L E 2
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FR20114F5 188 EZR )

Mr. Wu Chi Keung was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company to replace Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong with effect from
30 March 2012.

Directors are also the eligible participants under the share option scheme of
the Company as disclosed in the report of the directors in this report. Details
of emoluments of the Directors from the Group for the year are as disclosed
in note 12 to the financial statements and the retirement benefit schemes is

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee in May 2011. The terms
of reference of nomination committee has been revised in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code of the GEM Listing Rules in 2012. The
nomination committee comprises one executive director and two INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Siu Hong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi
Keung. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter.

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company to replace Mr. Leung Siu Hong with
effect from 30 March 2012.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors. The nomination should be
taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential

contributions to the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012, the Board
considered that there was no immediate need to make any change in relation
to the Board membership. In order to comply with the amendments to the
GEM Listing Rules, board resolutions of the Company had been passed to
change the chairman of the remuneration committee from Mr. Ip Kwok
Kwong to Mr. Wu Chi Keung and change the chairman of the nomination

committee from Mr. Leung Siu Hong to Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in May 2011. The terms
of reference of audit committee has been revised in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the GEM Listing Rules in 2012. The audit
committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr. Au-Yang
Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wan Kam To. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu
Chi Keung.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012, the audit
committee reviewed with the management and the Company’s auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the
audited financial statements and unaudited interim financial statements and
reviewed with the management the unaudited quarterly financial statements

and the internal control of the Company.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to supervise the internal
control policies, the financial reporting systems and procedures of the
Company, to review the financial statements and reports of the Group, and to

review the terms of engagement and the scope of audit work of the auditor.

The members and attendance of the six meetings of the audit committee

during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012 are as follows:
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Attendance

Director == HERE

Mr. Wu Chi Keung tAESR A 6
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FA2011F5 A18AEET)

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter B5 R B &L E 6
(appointed on 18 May 2011) (FA20114F5 A18AEZ1T)

Mr. Wan Kam To FEHRE 6

(appointed on 18 May 2011)
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant

doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2012 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this

report.

During the year, remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the Group
are approximately HK$500,000 for audit services and HK$165,000 for non-

audit services, respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012, the Company
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures which
includes the policies, procedures, monitoring and communication activities
and standard of behaviour established for safeguarding the interests of the

shareholders of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely

disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The corporate website of the Company (www.gca.com.hk) has provided an

effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 49 to 131.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the

Company on 10 August 2012.

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 3 December 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 18 May 2011. On
31 May 2011, the shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange.
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REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
(CONTINUED)

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented an issue of 125,000,000 new shares during its initial
public offering (the “IPO") and a capitalisation issue of 374,999,000 shares
in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the 125,000,000
new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 per share. The gross
proceeds of the IPO received by the Company were approximately HK$90
million, and the net proceeds were approximately HK$78 million. Details
of the plan for the use of proceeds from the IPO are set out in the section
headed "“Reasons for the Placing and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
Details of use of proceeds since the listing are set out in the sections headed
“Use of the Net Proceeds from the Company’s Placing” and “Comparison
of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress” in the Management

Discussion & Analysis in this report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out on page 132.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this

report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 28 to the financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were first listed on the GEM board of the Stock
Exchange on 31 May 2011. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities after
listing.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the Company'’s reserve available for distribution to equity
holders comprising share premium account and retained profits, amounted
to approximately HK$76.6 million (2011: NIL).

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the year are disclosed in
note 35 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the Listing Date, the Group has entered into the following
transactions with the following parties, which will be connected persons of
the Company upon the listing. All of these transactions will continue after the
listing of shares on GEM and constitute continuing connected transactions
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.

Relationship between the Group and each of the
relevant connected persons

KP Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants (“KP Cheng & Co.”) is a
partnership business set up in Hong Kong on 22 February 1993. Mr. Cheng
Kam Por (“Mr. Cheng”) is the sole proprietor of KP Cheng & Co. Mr. Cheng
is interested in 29.32% of the issued share capital of Smart Pick Investments
Limited (“Smart Pick”). Smart Pick is interested in 51% of Genius Ideas
International Ltd. (“Genius Ideas”). Genius Ideas is interested in 73% of GCA
Professional Services Group Limited (“GCA Professional”). GCA Professional
is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Brilliant One Holdings
Limited (“Brilliant One”). Brilliant One interested in 75% of the issued share

capital of the Company upon the listing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Relationship between the Group and each of the
relevant connected persons (Continued)

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (“Prosperity Investment”) is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 310). Prosperity
Investment is indirectly interested in the entire issued share capital of Simply
Joy Investments Limited (“Simply Joy”). Simply Joy is interested in 20% of
GCA Professional. GCA Professional is interested in the entire issued share
capital of Brilliant One. Brilliant One interested in 75% of the issued share

capital of the Company upon the listing.

Glorious Bright Limited (“Glorious Bright”) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 17 May 2000 with limited liability. Glorious Bright is an

indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Prosperity Investment.

GR Investment International Limited (“GR Investment International”)
(now known as Prosperity Management Services Limited) is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 5 November 1985 with limited liability. GR
Investment International is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Prosperity

Investment.

Greater China Capital Limited (“GC Capital”) is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong on 30 June 1992 with limited liability. GC Capital is a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of GCA Professional. GCA Professional is interested
in the entire issued share capital of Brilliant One. Brilliant One interested in

75% of the issued share capital of the Company upon the listing.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, for so long as each of KP Cheng & Co.,
Prosperity Investment, Glorious Bright, GR Investment International and
GC Capital remains a connected person of the Company, the transactions

described below constituted connected transactions upon the listing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Lease between the Group and connected persons
with rental income receiving from connected person

Lease by Linkson Investment Limited (“Linkson”) in relation to an
office in Hong Kong

On 26 July 2010, Linkson (as tenant) entered into an agreement with Hang
Lung Real Estate Agency Limited as agent for AP Success Limited (the
“Landlord”) pursuant to which the Landlord agreed to lease an office located
at room 2701-02 and 2703-08 on the 27th Floor of Shui On Centre at 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for the period of three

years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012.

On 11 August 2010, Linkson, the Landlord, Greater China Appraisal Limited,
Greater China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited ("GCCCS"), KP
Cheng & Co., Prosperity Investment and Glorious Bright (the “Other Users”)
entered into a guarantee and indemnity. Pursuant to the said guarantee and
indemnity, the Landlord has no objection to the Other Users to hold, use and

occupy the Property.

On 6 December 2010, Linkson and KP Cheng & Co. entered into a licence
agreement (the “KP Cheng Licence Agreement”), pursuant to which Linkson
agreed to licence a portion of the Property to KP Cheng & Co., for a period of
three years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December
2012. The details of the payment terms under the KP Cheng Licence
Agreement are contained in the Prospectus headed “Continuing connected
transactions”. During the year, an amount of approximately HK$0.7 million
was classified as continuing connected transactions under this agreement.

The KP Cheng Licence Agreement has been terminated on 31 October 2011.
The payment terms under the KP Cheng Licence Agreement was calculated

based on the proportion of floor area occupied by KP Cheng & Co in the

Property and market rent at similar premises at the relevant time.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

On 16 December 2010, Linkson and Prosperity Investment entered into
a licence agreement (the "“Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement”),
pursuant to which Linkson agreed to licence a portion of the Property
to Prosperity Investment, for a period of three years commencing from
1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012. The details of the
payment terms under the Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement are
contained in the Prospectus headed “Continuing connected transactions”.
During the year, an amount of approximately HK$1.3 million was classified as

continuing connected transactions under this agreement.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rule 20.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. Based on this letter from the auditor and
after their own review, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirm the Continuing Connected Transactions for the year have
been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with
the Agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
52.5% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer

amounted 10 21.6%.

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers share

capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company since the Listing Date and up to the date of

this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (Managing Director)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (Chairman)
(appointed on 18 May 2011)

Mr. Wu Chi Keung
(appointed on 18 May 2011)

Mr. Wan Kam To
(appointed on 18 May 2011)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with articles 83 to 85 of the Company'’s article of association,
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Mr. Leung Siu Hong will retire by rotation. At the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, being eligible, will
offer himself for election and Mr. Leung Siu Hong will not offer himself for re-
election. The independent non-executive directors are appointed for a period

of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors as required under Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considered all independent non-

executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 15 to 20 of this report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from May 2011 and
will continue thereafter. Each of the independent non-executive directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from May 2011. All the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the

Company pursuant to its articles of association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company

BESY

REFEANILEET L RFE TS RARAZE
HEMBRBOEBZERRITRZEL

EERFTETHRAEBREADRFR
HABEE S 2Kk HER A
RESEERXRE

MR201263A31H  ARAREEREZITHAE
RAQBISHBE LR (TR ABHFRAEK
Bl ([ % REFE GBI ) EXVER) Bk 17 - #8978
Bty RIEFHH - EEREEFRAEBGRAEXV
HETRESH ME NG AR A KB AT 2
E#EE (BREEEREESRAEKMINZE
BXEERIRRAER N IOAR) RIRE
BH R HEAEEME352{6B I A ZIEBIFTIE 2
EafMAz s kAR KRERAIER MR
B 555,46 25.671R AR EAME AR T LB
Tz kBT

(a) RAATEREE0.0ET ZK
BzHER

Approximate

percentage

Number of of issued

Name of Director Nature of interests shares held share capital
HEBTRA

BEEpA EEME RO E BHBESL
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (“Mr. Ip”) (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%

Rt ([EEE]) (MFT1) XEFDEB R

Note:

1. 358,575,000 shares are held by Brilliant One Holdings Limited
(“Brilliant One"”) which is wholly-owned by GCA Professional Services
Group Limited (“GCA Professional”). GCA Professional is owned as
to 73% by Genius Ideas International Ltd. (“Genius Ideas”) which is
owned as to 51% by Smart Pick Investments Limited (“Smart Pick”)
and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to 58.76% by GC
Holdings Limited (“GC Holdings”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EERFETHAEREAQATR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, HMEEzEHDZ2Kk{H HER®H
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE RESREZRAAE (&)
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(CONTINUED)
(b) Long positions in the shares of associated (b) REBEZERAZHA
corporations
Approximate
percentage
Name of of interest
associated Number of in associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests shares held corporation
ERAE B @R
BHBL
EEp HEEEER BHME FEROBE BAL
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Brilliant One Interest in controlled corporation 200 100%
RERAE (K1) Brilliant One REHEERNER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GCA Professional Interest in controlled corporation 730 73%
BRAE (K1) EEEZ REHEER #R
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Genius Ideas Interest in controlled corporation 5,100 51%
BRA (K1) Genius Ideas SEZEMER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Genius Ideas Beneficial owner 612 6.12%
EhE (K1) Genius Ideas EnBEAA
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Smart Pick Interest in controlled corporation 5,876 58.76%
RHRE (M) Smart Pick REHEERNER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GC Holdings Beneficial owner 1 100%
BRAE (K1) GC Holdings EREBA
Mr. Leung Siu Hong Smart Pick Beneficial owner 1,192 11.92%
(“Mr. Leung”) (Note 1)
PRERAE ([REE]) Smart Pick EREBA
(Hizt1)
Note: H15E -
1. The Company is owned as to 71.72% by Brilliant One. Brilliant One 1. AR FEABrilliant Onef 571.72%7#

% o Brilliant One )2 EE X2 EHE -
% 2 = % 8/ Genius IdeasfiB73%
#E %5 ° Genius Ideas? Bl A Smart Pick &
HEREAES1%%6.12%HE 2 - Smart
Pick? BIFEGC Holdings& 25 £ A
58.76% }11.92%# % - GC Holdings
RELE2EHE-

is wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to 73% by
Genius Ideas. Genius Ideas is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick and
6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to 58.76% by GC Holdings
and 11.92% by Mr. Leung. GC Holdings is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Long positions in underlying shares under equity
derivatives

EERITAHASREATR
H AR SEE R 2 B R A
RESEER KA (5

(o) BIBRASTE T ARERERKREH
"R

Approximate

Number of percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held share capital
HE#ITRA
EEMA EmiE FREstEER OB E BHES L
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
Bifs R B STE BB A
Mr. Wu Chi Keung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
AR A& EREBA
Mr. Wan Kam To Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
FERESTE EnEAA
Note: Hiat -

1. The directors of the Company have been granted options under the
share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”), details of which
are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRADARM KAEER

2w RRE

M20124F3A318 LR ATRAR ARG RAE
RARR 1D B IR IR 3 5 R A E R A XVEL 562
REIDHEANE AR R KB Z gk
B ARIRIEE F K B E A £ 336158 i 8kt
RARMBEHOELMRAZERIARWT

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name Nature of interests shares held share capital
HEBRITRE
28 ERME FrERAEE BMABF D
Brilliant One (Note 1) Beneficial owner 358,575,000 71.72%
Brilliant One (A/3£1) BB A
GCA Professional (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
EEEE (M) REHEEMER
Genius ldeas (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
Genius ldeas (#t:21) ZEHLEB R RS
Smart Pick (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
Smart Pick (475%71) SEHEE R EE
Easy Gain Development Limited Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
(“Easy Gain") (Note 1)
Easy Gain Development Limited ZEHEE O ER
([Easy Gain]) (Ht7E1)
GC Holdings (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
GC Holdings (#7:£1) ZEHLEB R E S
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%
oA (MEET) REHEE M ER
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Interest in controlled corporation 358,575,000 71.72%

("Mr. Wong") (Note 1)
muwEE ([EEE]) (HiF1)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Note:

1. Brilliant One is wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to
73% by Genius Ideas. Genius Ideas is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick,
42.88% by Easy Gain and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to
58.76% by GC Holdings which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip. Easy Gain is
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2012, other than the interests in shares of the Company and
its associated corporations held by the Directors, the chief executives and the
substantial shareholders of the Company stated above, there were no other
persons with interests recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests in
any business, which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to
them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the Company
conditionally adopted the Scheme on 18 May 2011 whereby the Board
are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the
Scheme, to grant options (the “Options”) to subscribe for the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) to the eligible participant, including Director and
employee, as defined in the Scheme. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which the Scheme
was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the

Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Details of Options granted and a summary of the movements of the

outstanding Options under the Scheme during the year are as follows:

B REET 8 (

RER - REBEZFTE DR E RERITENBR
BZEBHEFBNT

\
3/

Number of Options
BRE#A
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
1 April during during during during 31 March price
Eligible participant 2011 the year the year the year the year 2012 per Share  Date of grant Exercisable period
HKS
20115 R2012%
418 38318
LERAL HATE REREE  REATR  RERXN  REREH HATHE SROKE RUBH fix:d
BT
Director
Ez
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, - 200,000 - - - 200,000 020  6.1.2012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
Peter (both dates inclusive)
BERBELE 20121768 201255818 220214573178
(pEEREMA)
Mr. Wu Chi Keung - 200,000 - - - 200,000 020  6.1.2012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
BEREE 201251768 2012558188 Z202145A178
(REEEMA)
Mr. Wan Kam To - 200,000 - - - 200,000 020 612012 18.5.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
FRELE 20121768 201255818 220215573178
(pEEEMA)
Employees - 4,290,000 - - - 4,290,000 020 612012 One-third of the Options are exercisable from
&8 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2013 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014
10 17.5.2021.
201241 76H =H—ERETR201251A308 22021
FSATAMTE =H—BRETH2013
FIABE0ANFSATBAE REH
= —BREAR201451 A18F2021
FSATRME-
Employees - 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 020 612012 One-half of the Options are exercisable
- from 30.1.2012 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-half of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2013 t0 17.5.2021.
201241 /6H —HERETR201251A30H F202145
ATBAR RATS-+BRETR
0B3FIRIBEANF5ATB .
Employees - 330,000 - - - 330,000 020 612012 One-third of the Options are exercisable from
- 1.7.2012 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2013 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014
10 17.5.2021.
201241 76H =A—BRETR01247A18 22021 F
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Options

BREHE

Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed
1 April during during during
Eligible participant 2011 the year the year the year

R201E
4B81A
REKAL HAME  REREE  RERTE  RERXNM

Exercise
price
per Share

HKS

SRITEE
T

B ERTE

Date of grant

RHAS

/

Exercisable period

[iE

Employees - 480,000 - 120,000
&8

Employees - 300,000 - -
&2

Employees - 60,000 - -
B2

Employees - 640,000 - -
L]

Employees - 450,000 - -
&8
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0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

20121768

6.1.2012

201251768

6.1.2012

201251768

6.1.2012

20121768

One-third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

=H—BIRETR01351R1BE2015
SATRTE =H—BRETR2014%
1R1IBE0NE5A1TRM(E RES=
A—BRETA0155F1 518220215
SA17BAE.

1.7.2012-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
20127 A1HZ2021458178
(REEEMA)

1.1.2013-17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2013F1 B1B 22021558178
(pfEEEMA)

30.1.2012 - 17.5.2021
(both dates inclusive)
2012418300 22021453178
(pHEEEMA)

If the performance target as set out by the
Group is achieved by the employees, one-
third of the Options are exercisable from
1.7.2012 t0 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2013 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014
10 17.5.2021.

MEREIAEBMITNRRER BI=
A—BRETR01257R1B 22015
SRR =H—BRETR2013F
1R1BZ0NESA1TRMAE REH=
A —BRETHR01451 B1B 220215
SA17BAE.

If the aforesaid performance target cannot
be achieved, one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021.
One-third of the Options are exercisable
from 1.1.2014 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2015 to 17.5.2021.

AR FRRREE B=H—RkE
WR2013F1A1B 202155817817
fRo=H—BRETHR2014F1FIRE
NESRTEIE REB=H—BR
BT R201551 A1B 22021957178
f1fee
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Number of Options

BREHE

Outstanding

as at

1 April

Eligible participant 2011
R2011%
4818

AERAL MATTE

Granted
during
the year

REARE

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

RERTE  RERXX

Cancelled
during
the year

REREH

Outstanding
asat

31 March
2012

n20126
38318
WA

AR AERTE (&)

Exercise

price

per Share

HKS

SRITEE

R

Date of grant

RHAH

Exercisable period

s

Employees -

-

900,000

900,000

9,850,000

- 120,000

9,730,000

Note:

1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the

Options were granted during the year was HK$0.20.
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6.1.2012

201241768

1.

If the performance target as set out by the
Group is achieved by the employees, one-
third of the Options are exercisable from
1.1.2013 to 17.5.2021. One-third of the
Options are exercisable from 1.1.2014 to
17.5.2021 and the remaining one-third of
the Options are exercisable from 1.1.2015
10 17.5.2021.

MEERIAREMTNRRRER 8=
A—BRETR2013F1 A1B 220215
SAVTRTE: =5 —BRETR2014%
TAIBR01ESAITRATR - RESRZ
A —BRETHR01551 A1 22015
SA17RTTE.

If the aforesaid performance target cannot
be achieved, one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.7.2013 to 17.5.2021.
One-third of the Options are exercisable
from 1.1.2014 to 17.5.2021 and the
remaining one-third of the Options are
exercisable from 1.1.2015 to 17.5.2021.

MARES FRRRER B=0—BlE
AR013F7T B E2021F58178 17
feo = —BRETR2014FIHIRE
NESRITEITR RES=H R
BAR201551 818 22021657178
frfee

RERREE HBERE B AR U (E

50.208 7T



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 40,480,000 Shares and represents 8.1% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

An offer for the grant of Options must be accepted within twenty-one days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable by
the grantee of an Option to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an Option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in respect
of any particular Option granted under the Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Option; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date

of the Option.

The number of Shares in respect of which Options may be granted under
the Scheme to any individual in aggregate in any 12 month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue, without prior approval from

the Company's shareholders.

The Company shall be entitled to issue Options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the date of approval of the Scheme. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted
and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time. An Option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the

date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR'S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2011 neither Grand Vinco Capital Limited (“Vinco Capital”)
nor any of its directors, employees or associates had any interests in the
shares of the Company or any member of the Group, or any right to subscribe
for or to nominate persons to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any

member of the Group.

Pursuant to the compliance advisor agreement entered into with the
Company and Vinco Capital and Emperor Capital Limited (the “Joint
Compliance Advisors”) in 2011, the Joint Compliance Advisors received and
will receive fees for acting as the Company’s compliance advisor for the

period commencing on the Listing Date.

On 29 February 2012, the Company and Emperor Capital Limited (“Emperor
Capital”) have mutually agreed to terminate the role of Emperor Capital
as one of the joint compliance advisers of the Company. Emperor Capital
has confirmed that it has no disagreement with the Board. The other joint
compliance adviser of the Company, Vinco Capital, becomes the sole

compliance adviser of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Since its listing on the
Stock Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
CG Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance

Report in this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued

share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWmE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 36 to the

financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 have been
audited by the Company’s auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ip Kwok Kwong

Managing Director

Hong Kong
25 June 2012
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RSM Nelson Wheeler
FIREE (B8 5=
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREATERCHINA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 131, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2012, and of the Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

B 220129331 H1F FE
2012 2011
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 201148
B 5 FERT FHIT

Turnover = 2 6 68,336 55,626
Cost of services BR T R A (19,996) (13,932)
Gross profit EF 48,340 41,694
Other income HAob YA 7 2,863 2,867
Marketing expenses TS HEER X (337) (203)
Administrative expenses THHAX (37.399) (15,135)
Other operating expenses H g R (486) (590)
Profit from operations mEER 12,981 28,633
Finance costs R0 N 9 (11) =
Share of results of an associate ok i) /NI ¥ 1,146 =
Loss on deemed disposal of partial RIELHE — ML QR

interests in an associate w2 B8 (1,051) =
Profit before tax R B4 A 2 Al 13,065 28,633
Income tax expense FTis Bl 10 (2,742) (3,206)
Profit for the year attributable to ARAREEAEGEERR

owners of the Company 11 10,323 25,427
Other comprehensive income, Hg2EKA Bk

net of tax:
Exchange differences on translating BREIINEEBNELZR

foreign operations (15) 15
Total comprehensive income for the AAFHEEAEBEEEZHEBA

year attributable owners of the FER

Company 10,308 25,442
Earnings per share BRER 15

Basic (HK cents) A GEALD 2.15 6.78

Diluted (HK cents) g (B) 2.15 N/AZ i A




At 31 March 2012

R20124F3H31H
2012 2011
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
B = FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E IS Y 16 2,210 1,224
Investments in associates REEE N AR E 18 23,714 =
25,924 1,224
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B S W ERIE 19 39,407 5,643
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRIE ek
receivables Bl fE kI8 4,476 5,906
Financial asset at fair value through BARBEFTAERRN
profit or loss CRIEE 20 1,469 -
Amounts due from related parties B UK 8 3 5 FRIE 21 382 31,418
Pledged bank deposit BEHIRITER 22 1,004 =
Bank and cash balances RITRIR e L% 22 37,073 8,708
83,811 51,675
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 e A 23 1,972 1,342
Accruals and other payables FERTIE B K H b FE A /I8 5,826 3,498
Amounts due to related parties JE{S A 5 FRIE 24 - 8,249
Obligations under finance leases BERERMT 25 144 =
Current tax liabilities mBRIEEE 5,038 3,469
12,980 16,558
Net current assets REBEEFE 70,831 35,117
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBESE 96,755 36,341
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Obligations under finance leases BMEREERM 25 342 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 96,413 36,341




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B RS IR N 3R

At 31 March 2012

R2012F3531H

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114F
Bt FER FHET

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& AR 28 5,000 3,200
Reserves (A 29 91,413 33,141
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 96,413 36,341

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2012.

Ip Kwok Kwong
HEN
Director

EZE
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Leung Siu Hong
RIKE
Director
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At 31 March 2012

R20124F3H31H
2012 2011
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
B = FET T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARRIEE 17 - =
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b & W sk I8 484 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT B R RN IE 17 78,489 =
Pledged bank deposit EERRITER 22 1,004 =
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & 22 6,063 -
86,040 -
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H At & 5 5RIE 4,021 =
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A — I B A B3R 17 73 1
4,094 1
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BE)FE 81,946 (1)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE (A6 FE 81,946 (1)
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A& 28 5,000 -
Reserves E] 29(b) 76,946 (1)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 81,946 (1)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2012.

Ip Kwok Kwong
EEN
Director

EF

EEER20126F6 8258t -

Leung Siu Hong
RIKEE
Director

BF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—u— 7
Z \ ll\EIn\
e Em P ER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

B 220129F3H31H IFFZ
Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2PN 2
Foreign
currency Share-based
Share Capital translation payment
Share premium reserve reserve Retained reserve
capital  (note 29(c)(iii))  (note 29(c)(ii))  (note 29(c)i) earnings  (note 29(c)iv))  Total equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NRBRER
R R E BEARRE NERERE PASEN: 1]
(Fffz£29 (Ffz£29 (Hfz£29 (M3£29
RA& (c)ii)) (@i (0)i) REEF @) EHEE
T FTHT T T T T T
At 1 April 2010 R201064 718 3,00 = 2,159 = 19,940 = 25,299
Total comprehensive income for the  EE 2 E YA EE
year - - - 15 25,427 - 25,442
Interim dividend declared by HEARZERT RS
subsidiaries (note 14) (HizE14) - - - - (14,400) - (14,400)
Changes in equity for the year FEEREZY - - - 15 11,027 - 11,042
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 ®201163A318 &
2011F4A18 3,200 - 2,159 15 30,967 - 36,341
Total comprehensive income FEZARAEE
for the year - - - (15) 10,323 - 10,308
Recognition of share-based payments HE2LAR{A A EFE 2 (3% - - - - - 3,29 3,296
Transfer of share-based payments ~ HEHAZE TES 2
relating to the share reward to RR17 78 B 2 LARR 19
employees RER R - - - - 2,956 (2,956) -
Effect of group reorganisation SEEA YE (3,200) - 3,200 = = = =
Share issued under the BEENMCBEARTZRG
capitalsation issue 3,750 (3,750) - - - - -
Share issued pursuant to the placing  1RIE AL & 8472 B {3 1,250 88,750 - - - - 90,000
Share placing expenses (3] EE’% Y = (13,532) = = = = (13,532)
Interim dividends declared by HERARERTBRE
subsidiaries (note 14) (Fiz uf 14) - = = = (30,000) = (30,000)
Changes in equity for the year FEERZE 1,800 71,468 3,200 (15) (16,721) 340 60,072
At 31 March 2012 #201243A318 5,000 71,468 5,359 - 14,246 340 96,413
53 BEEERBERA

2012 Ff#ﬁ



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZ

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
2012%F 20114F
FERT FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETDHEERE
Profit before tax B 5 A& A 13,065 28,633
Adjustments for: FLAT FIEFEE
Share of results of an associate e —E 55%’“ E (1,146) =
Loss on deemed disposals of partial RIEHE —HBE R Ao
interests in an associate e Z%TE 1,051 =
Allowance for trade receivables H 5 FEWGRIE R 493 945
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables B 5 RWGRIE R BB (255) (1,254)
Bad debts written off I AR - 899
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LA #3245 H AR D
RER Z HRFEX 3,296 -
Depreciation e 521 273
Finance costs B 7% AR 11 =
Interest income R B WA (132) 1)
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESBEAKLE RN 16,904 29,475
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables Z 5 e RTE () (34,002) 23,140
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, TR IR -« e R HE A FE UK
deposits and other receivables RIER A (HEhn) 1,430 (4,767)
Decrease in financial asset at fair value RARBE AERR
through profit or loss BREER D 247 =
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z SR FEE N CRd) 630 (469)
Increase in accruals and other payables FERTIE B R H b FEAT FRIFIE AN 2,328 1,181
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & (A FBR4 (12,463) 48,560
Income tax paid EFEH (1,173) (2,620)
Finance costs paid [RERUE TN (11) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities #&& &8 (FTH) FIBIR & F5HE (13,647) 45,940
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZDRERE
Dividend income received from an associate B — B 2 B 2 iR B A 300 =
Acquisition of an associate U g — R B & 2 ) (26,017) =
Interest received e EES 132 21
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME KER&HE (857) (1,091)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposit BEERRTER (3Em), R (1,004) 1,126
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities & &&8) (FTA) 52
R FER (27,446) 56




For the year ended 31 March 2012

B FE2012F3A31HIEFE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
FET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEETHRERE
Proceeds from placing of shares B & A% 10 FT 18 30IR 90,000 =
Share placing expenses AR 15 B & B S2 (13,532) =
Repayment for finance leases EEMERS (161) =
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FEUR B S R IER A (3G 0)
from related parties 1,418 (27,887)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FEAST A& 5 SR IE R (8,249) (2,803)
Dividends paid [EENEES - (14,203)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing BMEEEAE (FTA)
activities REFRE 69,476 (44,893)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBESEEMEMNFEE
EQUIVALENTS 28,383 1,103
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHMZE (18) 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FINEERELSEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,708 7,590
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRANESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 37,073 8,708
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERALZEEYH M (M522)
EQUIVALENTS (note 22)
Bank and cash balances RIT IR & 5k 37,073 8,708




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129331 H1FFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 3
December 2010. The address of its registered office of the Cayman
Islands is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2012,
Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“B.V.l."), is the immediate parent; GC Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the B.V.l., is the ultimate parent and Mr.
Ip Kwok Kwong is the ultimate controlling party (the “Controlling

Shareholder”) of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 31 May 2011.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting period beginning on 1 April
2011. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards;
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group's financial

statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 e AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE2012F3 831 HIFF/F
2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results

of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivatives which are

carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these

financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZ

REZENBHRREANBE ST BERH

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below. AMAAR o
(a) Consolidation (a) ZZEERHE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3H31H IFFZ

(b) Merger accounting for business combination

under common control

The companies now comprising the Group are under the common
control of the Controlling Shareholder. Pursuant to the group
reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) which is more fully
explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate reorganisation”
in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated 25
May 2011 (the “Prospectus”), the Company acquired the entire
interests of New Valiant Limited and Fidelia Investments Limited
and their subsidiaries on 18 May 2011 by way of swap of shares,

and the Company became the holding company of the Group.

As the Company and the Group were both controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder before and after the Group
Reorganisation, the Group Reorganisation was accounted for
as a business combination of entities under common control.
The financial statements have been prepared based on the
principles and procedures of merger accounting in accordance
with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, as if the Group Reorganisation had
occurred from the date when the combining entities first came

under the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities as if they had been combined from the
date when they first came under the control of the Controlling

Shareholder.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows include the results and cash
flows of the combining entities from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the

date of the common control combination.
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(b) Merger accounting for business combination

(9]

under common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the Group structure immediately after the Group
Reorganisation had been in existence at the end of each reporting
period. The net assets of the combining entities are combined
using the existing book values from the Controlling Shareholder’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or gain on bargain purchase at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the Controlling

Shareholder’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net profit
or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve consistency of

the Group's accounting policies.

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date

fair values.
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(9]

(d)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the

Company.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant

influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of
each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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(d) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group's share
of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated foreign

currency translation reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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(e) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) sSMMEHAEE

@)

il Y EE TN g
MAKEEE BENEIEHRE
MEE DEREBEEMENE
EEEREOEE (Y E
BB RAHHWERNE
TLRF| - BTAARANER
25k -

(ii) W& E MU BIREN S

R &8

MAINEETT RO R 5 Ty 9] 2 B
R R 5 B HI ey A E &
BMEREEE - LIMEETE
MEBEERABBEDRANE
BERRNEXRLE - B IR
BERREHN BB IR IER

=7
e ©

=
b=11[

BA R EESE BRSNS SHE
MR TR A A E
% B R B -

EFEBBEENRENEME
T 4y 25 HERR B - % BB BV (E A
BEE 34 4B B8 0 0 Bt 22 T e 2
NiER-BHFEERBENRE
RIB S HERE - Z BB NER
BE 34 4B AR BB 0 M 1B ER FERR



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31HIFFZF

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are translated into the

Company's presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange

rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 to 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 4 1o 5 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(g) Leases

The Group as lessee

()

(ir)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease

payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as

owned assets.

(9) HE

I [ E 2 RN
() HEHE

(ir)

BEMBENME RR & @R
EE LT eEBREAREENHE
EeNELEHEEAKR-HER
T8 (H1Fk B HHH A WERE (7]
B2 R E BB AR R
P o

BEHRARMARRNERE
BLBRTASEZHENUR
EHEAR-BREBEEEHEB
FMIsRREEEEZ ANER
HREEEFRERE (MEH
REERBREE) 2REEA
EERL-

HHBEAZHERBERBHN
MBMERTINEENBEHRE -
MEFRRLEHI D ABEX
HEBRREERE BEX
HRBEL AR HE D X H
S HEE 2 B ESRFE R

BMEHET EERBERE
e



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3H31H IFFZ

(g) Leases (Continued) (0) HE (&)
The Group as lessor KLE B EL TN
(i)  Operating leases () AEHE
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all BEMABENNERRXE R
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted BEE LM EBEAMEANME
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases EgUKEREAR RELK
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the EHECHERAKREBHEE
relevant lease. ZHEHABERERER
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial (h) BRRALBRAEHMIA
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the TREEREHMBERTEEKE
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party T EEHEXHET A7 R - R iK
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. MMRRFER ©
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to Mt EEWREIRES REMNE LR
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers B AEEFEREEREENRB
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; RNEBS [ K B R AN SR E I
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the BEBRRREEERBRENERE
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained 53 B f K Bl S O AR B T B E R
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the Hl4E - Bl B & EE IR AR L FERR - Y
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of KILERCREER  EEMNKREE
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that HERREREREM2E K
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised R Rt BE R E ATHZ5 - R
in profit or loss. BEmANFER -
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified WP E & KB E B EERERR - B
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The SHEE R Bl e g8 B IEER-
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability RIEERNEHBENREAERED
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or NREHEZENR B AR -

loss.
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()

()

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either
investments classified as held for trading or designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. These
investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these investments are

recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance

is recognised in profit or loss.
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()

(k)

)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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(I) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

() sRIEEBREZTAR (&

(Continued)
(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of asset appraisal services and
corporate services and consultancy is recognised when the
services are rendered and the transactions can be measured
reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the Group. Revenue from
progressively billed asset appraisal services is recognised by
reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction.
Revenue from appraisal services which are billed one-off are only
recognised when it is probable that the customers are willing
to settle the billing, which generally coincide with the reports
issue dates. Revenue from the provision of corporate services
and consultancy with specified period is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the period of services. Revenue from
success-based corporate services and consultancy is recognised
when the agreed financial targets as set out in the agreements are

met.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued) (m) =R (&)

Revenue from the provision of asset advisory services is recognised
when the revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Group, i.e. fixed fee revenue is recognised when
the relevant reports incidental to the transactions, such as due
diligence investigation, viability study and evaluation of the target
investment, is issued, and success-based revenue is recognised
when the customers receives or pays the considerations of the

underlying transactions.

Sub-leasing income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

(n) Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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(n) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all eligible employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss

represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(o) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-

based vesting conditions.
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(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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(q) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(q) Taxation (Continued)

(r)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Company or of a parent of the Company.

(q) BE @)

BELERBEENREEDNS RS
HIRETRE  YETHAEE RN
FERBR TN BB AHA D EBEERSIA
Yg (B B £ 38R

BREBIERBRBREHREEF L
FABMERT B E  RIEMERR
BERBENEERZRARNHR
TEHE R RAN B R - FRIE
BEERBEREME2EBARERE
R iER IR B AR RIFEZIS
ST IEERBIR IR B A 2 E A K
BEENERPRER -

B A IR 92 HIBTTHE A A R HR
MIBREERFENRBARE MEF
RARE S K i [R] — B A5 1 R R M iy
FRSH - A RS S B e SRR B e 4
HHASRREER & EF - AIRT
BIREENABREREHE-

BRER

RESERAKREAREZEA

=
8

2%_
it
i

o

(A WEBIATAL RIRZALHZ
AT ZIEREAREEBRRE:

() HAREEZEHEXHR
PR

(iy BAEEBEEAZEN:
2

(i) WARBHARARE QA
FEEBAB-



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZF

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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(s) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
investments and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of

the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements when material.
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period, are discussed

below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts based
on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.
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(9]

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which

such determination is made.

Fair value of investment

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active market, the
directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s warrants in its
associate, TodayIR Holdings Limited (“TodayIR"), details of which
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements, by considering
information from a variety of sources, including the latest financial
information of TodaylIR, the historical data on market volatility as

well as the price and industry and sector performance of TodayIR.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as part of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in

Renminbi and United States dollars.

(9]
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(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(a) ShEEEEE ()

The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure at the
end of the reporting periods to foreign currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates at the

end of the reporting periods.

TRABNBEHRAEEEIAI
KitENCHRBEEXABELM
AR EZINERR - BL2FIB R
AR ¥ 5 HA SR e BN HR fE R B ey 78

TEHI R £ R

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114F
FBT T
Denominated in United States dollars LA JTiHE

Bank and cash balances IRIT R IR e 261 12

Denominated in Renminbi DARYSE
Trade receivables =) A& 16,547 =

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit for the year that would have arisen if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at

the end of the reporting periods had changed at those dates,

TRERBRMA L 0EREHE
HTE  ARERBEHAREEA
AREEENZEABOEED A
138 50 95 B 0 48 2 il B B 2

assuming all other risk variables remained constant. o
2012 2011
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange for the year exchange for the year
rates HK$'000 rates HK$'000
20124 201148
FERR F 2% A
ExL#HE - #&0 ORP) Bk A #n Ord)
(T#) FET (F&F) FHET
United States dollars E 1% 2 1% -
(1%) ) (1)% -
Renminbi AR 3% 373 3% -
(3%) (373) (3)% -
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(b) Price risk

(9]

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.

At 31 March 2012, if the share prices of the investments increase/
decrease by 10%, profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$687,000 (2011: Nil) higher/lower, arising as a

result of the fair value gain/loss of the investments.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the pledged bank deposit, bank and
cash balances, trade and other receivables, financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss and amounts due from related parties
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history. Amounts

due from related parties are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposit and bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the Group's
three largest debtors accounted for 63% (2011: 21%) of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2012.

(b) B

(o)
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BERER -
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(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as

(d) "BEERRE

AREBENBRASEHERRE ME
HHREBELF R URREERE
IR T R AENE S RREHR

AEBERABNIHESHFMT :

follows:
On demand
or less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERR
1FUT 1Z22F 2E55F 5FLE
FExT FERT FET FET
At 31 March 2012 M201263AH31H
Trade payables 2 5 e /I8 1,972 - - -
Accruals and other FERTIE B R H fth fE < 5B
payables 5,278 - - -
Obligations under finance REFEE T
leases 158 172 187 -
On demand
or less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RER
1FAT 1224 2E55F S E
FHT FHET FH&T FHET
At 31 March 2011 M20115F3H31H
Trade payables B S RIE 1,342 = = =
Accruals and other FERTIE B R H b FE I 5IR
payables 2,553 - - -

Amounts due to related BT REE 5 FKIA
parties 8,249
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(f)

(e) Interest rate risk (e) A=A
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank REEAZHBITFREENNEX
deposits. These deposits bear interest at variable rates varied with [Bfg - ZEFRIRZB XS - A
the then prevailing market condition. EIRE RN M IE °
As at 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/ M20124F3A318 - T A H & %
(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other MR TERIERT  (HeTFI R
variables held constant, would have increased/(decreased) the A (THE)100EES  AEBMF
Group's profit for the year as follow: EEAggm ORd) T :
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FHET FH&T
Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FI= L (T#)
100 basis points 1001E £ & 377 =
(100) basis points (100) B &2 (377) =
Categories of the Group's financial () NEBER2012F3H8318H
instruments at 31 March 2012 SR T AER
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
2012 20114F
FET FHIT
Financial assets: SRMEE:
Financial asset at fair value through BEARBENAAEBSNESBEE
profit and loss
Held for trading FHERZ S 1,469 =
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ BERMEWRFE (2REEeRAESE
and cash equivalents): BY) :
Trade receivables Z 5 FE W GRIE 39,407 5,643
Deposits and other receivables & e R HAth BN RIE 1,793 1,138
Amounts due from related parties JiE Lk 8 5 5 3R IR 382 31,418
Pledged bank deposit BEHIRITER 1,004
Bank and cash balances 1T RIB SR 37,073 8,708
81,128 46,907
Financial liabilities: cEAasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REER AN EREE:
Trade payables 2 FEMNFRIE 1,972 1,342
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B &Eﬁﬂfﬁm 5,278 2,553
Amounts due to related parties JE < R 2 5 BB - 8,249
7,250 12,144
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(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial FRE MBI RMREAE RS F
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial EERGHABENERERARS
position approximate their respective fair values. A RBEMEE -

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair T RARBEFEREDRAZRE
value hierarchy which has 3 levels: ANABERBEL:

Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F1E: HEREENBERNERT

identical assets or liabilities.

(9) 2REME

BERE (RIERE) -

Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level F2fE: FIEFMEREHNHREN

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices). HHE)BREENB AR
o
Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on F3E:  WIHRBAIBERMISEE

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2012:

S BESBEEE (A
B REE (B{EER

MSHWEEXBERA
AR (BEEERAN)E

¥ o

R201253A31H A ABEERHEK

=

Fair value measurement using: Total
BUATHRBHAENAAREE: et
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E1E E2fE %3 20126
FET FHET FHET FHET

Financial asset at fair value &R SEETAEBERN

through profit or loss

Derivatives - - 1,469 1,469
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ELZE2012F3A31HIFFE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5. MBERERE &)
(9) Fair values (Continued) (9) 2AREHEH)
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on REFIBERAAEEFTENEEY
level 3: BR:
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or
Description 1 st loss
BRAREE
ST AR
Derivatives
TETHR
HK$'000
FHT
At beginning of year REH) -
Acquisition g 1,716
Total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss (#) A 1BZSFERH B E A (#) (247)
At end of year RER 1,469
#) Include gains or losses for assets held atend (#) BIEREHARNAFEERE
of reporting period 1,469
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those RERBERNBBLBEELFR
for assets held at end of reporting period are presented in the MEARNAFHEENRE 7%
statement of comprehensive income. H=ERES
6. TURNOVER 6. EXH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
F#ExT FHT
Asset appraisal services income & ENE R A 26,937 29,783
Asset advisory services income & E R ARG YA 22,736 22,716
Corporate services and consultancy income {2 AR 7 & #& s Ug A 18,663 3,127
68,336 55,626
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 36
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

B Z2012F3H31HIFFE
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HA
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FExT T
Exchange gain PE 5 U 2 34
Bank interest income RITH B UA 132 21
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses & %459 % R $5 674 352
Sub-leasing income oAU A 2,055 2,372
Others Hit - 88
2,863 2,867
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. ZHEH
The Group has two reportable segments as follows: REEMERE DT

Asset advisory services and

asset appraisal

BEBERS R EER

Corporate services and

consultancy

R KER

Provision of asset appraisal and asset advisory services, including real estate and
fixed asset appraisal, mineral property appraisal, business and intangible asset
valuation, financial instrument and derivative valuation and advisory related to
various types of assets in particular property in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC")

REEEMEREERRRY BREEMENETEEE L BENL X5
REVEEME eRIAMMETIAGMEREHESREE (LARRPEA
RAME (THE )Y %R

Provision of company secretarial services, human resource management and other
administrative services, accounting and tax services, corporate communication
and marketing services, corporate governance, internal control and enterprise risk
management services, management consultancy services

REDBAWERS  ANEBEREEREMITHARS S5t RATRE BB

ARTSHEERE  REER AMPEE  PERERERRS R EEHARS

87 REEXRBEERL A
2012 F£



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZF

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technical requirements and marketing

strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include corporate income and expenses, loss
on financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, share of results
of an associate, loss on deemed disposal of partial interests in an
associate, and finance lease charges. Segment assets do not include
corporate assets, investments in associates, financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, pledged bank deposit and amounts due from
related parties. Segment liabilities do not include corporate liabilities,
obligations under finance lease and amounts due to related parties.
Segment non-current assets do not include corporate property, plant

and equipment and investments in associates.

The Group accounts for intersegment revenue and transfers as if the

revenue or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

REBBRE D B RRBE M EBEL 12
HAREmMERE - &0 MBLEER R

HARSEBEETRNRITE R R MIGH
&SRR o
4 5 IR S AT IR R B B 7 R AR B SRS P

&
MERR-DEHENXBETIEER
WSz - ARBEFABENEREERS
B oMb —HBERRNESE RRHE
—RBERAR o R BERBRER
EXH-DHEETBRAREE N
BRANRE RAREEFABERNS
BMEE CEARTERLEUREETZ
B-pHBABETRREARBE BMEHE
AENENBEST IR DEIERBEE

BREARYNE BERRERRBER
AR E o

=

AREBIRE T EIES BEWKE REEA
BRI E =7 e s o



For the year ended 31 March 2012

B Z20129F3A31HILFE
(a) Information about reportable segment profit (a) EREARED B ERHEHE -
or loss, assets and liabilities: EEREBEBNEHR:
Asset Corporate
advisory services
services and and
asset appraisal consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEBRY DERK
REEFE REH @t
FET FTERT FHET
Year ended 31 March 2012 & Z2012F3A31ALLEE
Revenue from external REIRRF W=
customers 49,673 18,663 68,336
Intersegment revenue 7 EB U a - 8,244 8,244
Segment profit =iyl 25,436 11,744 37,180
Interest revenue B Mz 1 122 123
Depreciation e 224 182 406
Staff costs BIRA 11,347 4,334 15,681
Income tax expense PSR 2,243 499 2,742
Additions to segment NEDHIERBDEE
non-current assets 626 232 858
As at 31 March 2012 ®2012%3H31A8
Segment assets DHEE 36,570 26,056 62,626
Segment liabilities HEEE 7,256 1,115 8,371




For the year ended 31 March 2012

BFE2012F3A31HIEFE
(a) Information about reportable segment profit (a) ERERE B ENREE -
or loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued) EEREEBENER: (9
Asset advisory
services and Corporate services
asset appraisal and consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRRSER 1 ERE K
BERTE k) ast
FHT FHET FET
Year ended 31 March 2011 B Z2011$3A31A L FE
Revenue from external REIRE P Wz
customers 52,499 3,127 55,626
Intersegment revenue 2 5P - 1,200 1,200
Segment profit 5 B Al 30,758 1,178 31,936
Interest revenue A& 21 = 21
Depreciation e 198 59 257
Staff costs BTHA 10,969 2,148 13,117
Income tax expense FTiEHiAx% 3,206 - 3,206
Additions to segment non- RNEDBIERBDEE
current assets 153 836 989
As at 31 March 2011 ®2011%F3H31H
Segment assets DEHEE 14,390 1,217 15,607

Segment liabilities DEEE 6,838 849 7,687




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 22012F3A31H IFFZF

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 ABUER BRI

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
2012F 20114F
FET FAT
Revenue g
Total revenue of reportable segments R 9 S Uk 542 %8 76,580 56,826
Elimination of intersegment revenue 75 B i Wi s 3 8 (8,244) (1,200)
Consolidated revenue iRE W 68,336 55,626
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FET FHET
Profit or loss AR E B
Total profit of reportable segments s s F B R 37,180 31,936
Elimination of intersegment profits 7 EB [ i ) 8 (8,244) (1,200)
Unallocated amounts VAl okl
Share of results of an associate SME— B E R RES 1,146 =

Loss on deemed disposal of
partial interests in an associate
Loss on financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss
Finance lease charges

Corporate expenses

Consolidated profit for the year

BIEHE MBS R RO EE 2

B8
BARBEFABRRN

THEERE
MEMEEH
NCIES

(1,051) -
(247) -
(n -
(18,450) (5,309)
10,323 25,427




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZF

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
20125 201148
FHET FHET
Segment assets DEEE
Total assets of reportable segments WENHEERE 62,626 15,607
Unallocated amounts: ROBLER:
Corporate assets NAIEE 21,544 5,874
Investments in associates REEE R T RIRE 23,714 -
Financial asset at fair value through RAREEFABEA
profit or loss CRLEE 1,469 -
Amounts due from related parties JrE L 8 5 5 5K IR 382 31,418
Consolidated total assets AEBAERE 109,735 52,899
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 201148
FERT FHET
Segment liabilities DEEE
Total liabilities of reportable segments & D 2 B E4A%E 8,371 7,687
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLEHE:
Corporate liabilities NEIBE 4,465 622
Obligations under finance leases REMEERME 486 =
Amounts due to related parties JE{S A E 5 FKIA - 8,249
Consolidated total liabilities maBERRE 13,322 16,558




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129331 H 1k FE

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 ABUER BRI

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
FERT FHIT
Interest revenue FI 2 U 25
Total interest revenue of reportable WED N B W LARE
segment 123 21
Unallocated amounts PN Pk
Corporate interest revenue A EF) B E 9 =
Consolidated interest revenue AR e 132 21
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FHET FHET
Depreciation e
Total depreciation of reportable WEDEITERRE
segments 406 257
Unallocated amounts RO
Depreciation of corporate assets NEIBENE 115 16
Consolidated depreciation RENE 521 273
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114F
FERT FHTT
Staff costs B I A
Total staff costs of reportable segments g 25 7 &5 8 T A AN 48 58 15,681 13,117
Unallocated amounts KoL
Corporate staff costs Aa) B IKA 17,646 6,209
Consolidated staff costs LEB IR 33,327 19,326




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3 31 H1F FE

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENYE:
(Continued) (&)
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 201148
F#ExT FHIT
Additions to non-current assets REIRBEE
Total additions to non-current assets of ¥R&E D EAE IER BN E ERE
reportable segments 858 989
Unallocated amounts Al ek}
Acquisition of an associate g adis )= /NG]| 24,301 =
Additions to corporate ARERAIERBEE
non-current assets 646 102
Consolidated additions to FERBEFRDEE
non-current assets 25,805 1,091
(c) Geographical information: () HWEEHR:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114F
FET FHET
Revenue &=
Hong Kong B 19,508 42,166
The PRC excluding Hong Kong FE(TRERE) 35,451 12,936
Others HAh, 13,377 524
Consolidated total LRE 1R 68,336 55,626
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114F
FHET FAET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Hong Kong B 25,690 1,224
The PRC excluding Hong Kong FE(TRERE) 234 =
Consolidated total REBEE 25,924 1,224
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on 2R E R - W A B P AT

the locations of the customers.

Hh B AR ELAE



For the year ended 31 March 2012

B 220129331 H 1k FE
(d) Revenue from major customers: d) REFEFEFHWE:
An analysis of revenue from major customers which account for HAEERZTI0%HA EHNEER
over 10 percent or more of the Group's revenue is as follows: PlamaaT :
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114F
FET FAT
Asset advisory services and EEBBEREREETML
asset appraisal
Customer a = Fa - 14,141
Customer b XFb - 8,598
Customer ¢ ®Pc 14,727 =
Customer d =Ad 7,380 =
Corporate services and consultancy 1% R & 55
Customer e EFe 8,850 i@ A
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114F
FET FAT

Finance lease charges BmEREL N 11 =




For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3A31H IFFZF

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FHET FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVEARR I8 — BB FHH
Provision for the year FERE 2,742 3,206

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2011:
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31

March 2012.

Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect

thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product
of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as

follows:

AREBIBEEE201293A8310 ILFE
B 5T FE SR B 0m £ » $216.5% (20114 -
16.5% ) IEE RHR B B FIS T B o

Hofth 3 77 FE R A ) B0 B0 IR 32 TR AN ER
EREEBRRKERNME  RIEEMHIRTT
ED B NERETE -

PIT 575 5 52 E 2 AR R 754 A ) SR DA B B
BRBRAEMERRIT -

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

20125 20114

F#ExT FHIT

Profit before tax BR 75 AL A 13,065 28,633

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEENEHH X 16.5% 16.5%

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REANSHMEFTENTIE 2,156 4,724

Tax effect of income that is not taxable AR AR TS5 2 (1,855) (1,909)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AT F1F 5 2 B9 7R 75 2 & 1,095 82

Tax effect of temporary differences not TEREREENT ST E

recognised 19 (71)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised TR KRB AR BBENREZE 2,037 357
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BT R ERR IS EIE NS 2

previously recognised (443) -

Over-provision in current year NEE 7 B A 20 =

Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries  Fff /82 &) %% & 1 [F K) T 75 52 (287) 23

Income tax expense FRE iR 2,742 3,206
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

M. FE&RF
REBMEFHFENSG (FA)UTE

following: HEHSIAT :
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$'000
2012F 20114F
FExT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 AN B 500 250
Allowance for trade receivables (note 19) B 5 rEkTa s (MEE19) 493 945

Reversal of allowance for trade receivables & 5 JE M FUE B 55 B (F5E19)

(note 19) (255) (1,254)
Bad debt written off AR EH - 899
Depreciation e 521 273
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) BEEHM (H:E12@) 5,791 2,682
Exchange gain, net B 54 e o 7 2R (2) (34)
Fair value loss on an financial asset at BRARBEITABRNEREED

fair value throught profit or loss N EEEE 247 =
Operating lease charges LERES W

Land and buildings T RIEF 4,763 3,348

Photocopier machines FENH 37 28

4,800 3,376
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 8 TA(AN (B IEE SH )

Salaries, bonus and allowances e EALRER 29,595 18,810

Share-based payments LARR 7 73 B0 & 5 50 3,296 =

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNE RSB 436 516

33,327 19,326
BEEXRBERA T

97

2012 F£



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3 31 H1F FE

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=HM
The emoluments of each of the Company’s director were as ARRSESHMAT :
follows:
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
and benefits scheme based Discretionary
Name of director Fees inkind contributions  payments bonus Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
§é 2HR RIKEA DR
BEnE e BRI AR AERNHAR BEwA HY
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Year ended B 220128634318
31 March 2012 LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong E@pLa - 2,602 12 - 439 3,053
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RRREE - 2,206 12 - 68 2,286
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BfERBLE
Yan, Peter 157 - - 13 - 170
Mr. Wan Kam To FRELE 125 - - 13 - 138
Mr. Wu Chi Keung tHEE & 131 - - 13 - 144
Total st 413 4,808 24 39 507 5,791
Year ended BZ2011F3A31H
31 March 2011 LEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong EENEL - 2,507 12 - 162 2,681
Mr. Leung Siu Hong PRREE - 1 - - - 1
Independent non- BUHHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BfERBLE
Yan, Peter - - - - - -
Mr. Wan Kam To FRELE - - - - - -
Mr. Wu Chi Keung R L - = = = = - -
Total st - 2,508 12 - 162 2,682

B EXCPTIREEE SN - REF RN B AR
BAEENE R BN E A H M
B 2Bk

Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.



For the year ended 31 March 2012

B 220129331 H 1k FE
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (b) EEBRSH AL 1M
The five highest paid individuals in the Group included 2 directors BHZE201263A31BIEFE A&
(2011: 1 director) for the year ended 31 March 2012. Details MAEmeomATEE2EES
of those emoluments have been disclosed above. Details of the QONMF1ZER) - BERATMFE
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals for the year REXHEER - RAFE BT =5
are set out below: ATHF BRI T
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
FET FHIT
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 1,351 3,072
Discretionary bonus BIBIEAT 2,646 336
Share-based payments LARR 19 A BB 8 - 3k 1,478 -
Retirement benefit scheme R BT B K
contributions 24 48
5,499 3,456
The emoluments fell within the following bands: &8 70 TS 21 46 [ ) i A
Number of individuals
AE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FET FHT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7 21,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 —
(c) No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors () RAFE NEBYEREFESS
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon BEE AT E - AERZE N
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the BB ol N BB AN 55 [ 14 A SR ok B Bk A

i3

A

o

year.



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129F3 31 H1F FE

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,000 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

AEBZBEARHIMEATREABIGIS
HEBAERBERERIBHMEATES
e ([REEFE)) -AEEARZESR
He R TES%MRERFEEL K

HEZARRER ST EE,000E T

R A& E S R EVE R IR - HRBBB
BEE-

AEBRPEKXINHBRRAERES
AI0TT TR & B0 ROR IR & GBI
B -ZEMBRARAREREAFHFERT
AEETAD AP RRARS L
B A A BRIRAR R © 4 75 T BUT A
HAEZEMBARMARE R BRRK
EEMRKEMNEE - ZEWB LR
RIBRE A BIIE— BT ARIBEZTEIE
H AT R AR

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

20124 20114

FET FHIT

Interim (note a) AR (Bif&ta) 30,000 14,400
Proposed final of HK 1 cent SRR SR AR B

(2011: Nil) per ordinary shares (note b) (20114 - &) (MizEb) 5,000 =

35,000 14,400

Note:

(@) Before the Group Reorganisation, interim dividends of HK$8,500,000
(2011: HK$5,500,000) per ordinary share of Asset-Plus Global Limited,
totalling approximately HK$17,000,000 (2011: HK$11,000,000),
were declared and distributed to its then shareholder for the year.
Interim dividends of HK$8.125 (2011: HK$2.125) per ordinary
share of Greater China Appraisal Limited, totalling approximately
HK$13,000,000 (2011: HK$3,400,000) was declared and distributed
to its then shareholder for the year.

(b)  On 25 June 2012, the Company'’s Board of Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2012.
This proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these
financial statements.

o

(@) MEBEEA FR - Asset-Plus Global
Limited® A% & i@ §% 8,500,000 7T
(20114 : 5,500,000/ 7T ) K HA %
BERERDRERFEHERRE G54
17,000,0007% 7t (20114F : 11,000,000
BIT) cFN REFEBRARER
L@ AX8. 125/ 7T (20114F : 2,125
70) MR HARR B Bk Rk T H & R

» & 51 #913,000,0005% 7T (20114F :
3,400,000/ 7T) °

(b) THA20129F6H258 ARBIzEEER
FHHE201293A31HILFE 2 RHK
BERIB - ZEZRBITRRZE
ISR AR A EMRE -



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129331 H1F FE

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 is based on the
consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$10,323,000 and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 479,508,197 in issue during the year, and is

calculated as follows:

BREXER

B E20126F3A318 EFE M AR R
BABGERERBRNTIREF AR A
NEIEA ANERER S % 4910,323,000
BT RFRNBETLBRME TS
479,508,197 =18 T E W :

2012

2012

Issued ordinary shares at beginning of year RENNEBRTEBR 1

Effect of shares issued on Group Reorganisation REBEERZTORMBOTE 999

Effect of capitalisation issue upon listing REMREMMEETHT R 374,999,000

Effect on shares issued under placing REREETHRNNTE 104,508,197
Weighted average number of ordinary shares PG R B 3 3 A DD 5

at end of year 479,508,197

The weighted average number of ordinary shares issued pursuant to
Group Reorganisation and capitalisation issue is calculated as if the

shares had been outstanding throughout the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 is based on
the consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$25,427,000 and the assumption
that 375,000,000 shares of the Company were in issue and issuable,
comprising 1,000 shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus and
374,999,000 shares to be issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue
as more fully described in the section headed “Written resolutions of
the sole Shareholder” in Appendix VI to the Prospectus, as if the entire

shares were outstanding throughout the year.

BEEEEEREMBTMRITHE R
R A T4 BT R AR AR A R I
RITEEE o

HZE2011EF3A31B L FENAR R #
BEAEGEBRERNBATDBEFAAD
A A A AL 4R & R T £925,427,0007%8
TRt WRRBE BT RAIFITARAA
375,000,000 ik 17 - B ERHBREE B
HIE #1TH 1,000 H RIREBEBRE
RS NF (M- RENEEARAZEER]
—EIFTR MM E AN BEITMR T HITH
374,999,000 A% 17 * B AR AR (D A B ME
FERBETC



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129331 H1FFE

BRBERR

RNA AR AEEFREERF IIRESF
AR BIFA ARG F 410,323,000/
TT N2 38 AR N S5 88 /5480,040,5844%
(BARTEBRELRRT 2 FRNB T
I8 MR A% 28479,508, 197 X INAR (BT {5 7
EREBAMRITEBREMBRZAZTR
B FT3:9T 2 & MAR N 739 #1/R532,387
R ETE -

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$10,323,000 and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 480,040,584, being the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 479,508,197 in issue
during the year used in the basic earnings per share calculation plus
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 532,387 assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of the
share options outstanding during the reporting period.

ARARRREZ2011943A31H ILFE
AT AB RS TR I E 2

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not
have any dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31 March

2011, 8 2 )
Group
iy o |
Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEREIR BRRRE BAERE RE @zt
T TET TR T TET
Cost B
At 1 April 2010 R2010F4A1H 399 221 1,129 - 1,749
Additions NE 379 119 593 - 1,091
At 31 March 2011 and R20114$3A318 &

1 April 2011 201154818 778 340 1,722 - 2,840
Additions HE 434 69 354 647 1,504
Exchange difference EHER 3 - - - B
At 31 March 2012 ®2012%3A318 1,215 409 2,076 647 4,347
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 April 2010 2010647818 374 206 763 - 1,343
Charge for the year FEE 4 17 214 = 273
At 31 March 2011 and R2011E3A8318 &

1 April 2011 201154818 416 223 977 - 1,616
Charge for the year FEME 110 32 285 94 521
At 31 March 2012 ®2012%3A318 526 255 1,262 9% 2,137
Carrying amount HREE
At 31 March 2012 ®2012%3A318 689 154 814 553 2,210
At 31 March 2011 M20114%3A31H 362 17 745 - 1,224

At 31 March 2012 the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by the
Group under finance leases amounted to approximately HK$553,000
(2011: Nil).

M2012%3A31H AEERMEHREE
TRT# R B AR EE 4 A553,0007 7T
(Q011F &) »
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFF &

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B A TR E

Company
AAH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114F
FERT FHET

REMERE  BAA - =

Unlisted investments, at cost

FEWL,/ FEAS KT BB A R BB R BRI - 28
K BB E R SR o

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

R2012F3 A3 1B B AR MFELT

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
Name of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
SR, EhREERS
WEARERE R,/ B BRTRBRER RER/SMUBHESL  ETEER
2012 2011
2012%F 20115
Directly held:
EERE:
New Valiant Limited B.VI. 4 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 July 2010 US$1 each
EBRAEE AR EIREE REZR
20107 H28H 1ETHERR
Fidelia Investments B.VI. 4 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited 12 November 2010 US$1 each
HBRLEHS AR EREE REZK
2010F11 73128 1R ERR
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
Greater China Hong Kong 1,600,000 ordinary shares of ~ 100% 100%  Provision of asset appraisal
Appraisal Limited 20 August 1997 HK$1 each services
BEETERRAT e 1,600,0008% & A {E RAEE BT RS
199748 A20H TBTE L RR
Best Aim Consultant Ltd. B.VI. 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
2 February 2010 US$1 each
EBRUES 1REREE Emex
201062428 1RTHERR
Asset-Plus Global Limited B.VI. 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of asset advisory
23 July 1997 US$1 each services and corporate
consultancy services
KBRAES 2REREE REEERRARE K
199747A23H IETHEBR BERARS

2012 £



For the year ended 31 March 2012

(@  Linkson Investment Limited was acquired by GCA Professional Services

Group Limited, a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholder,

on 23 February 2010. It first came under the control of the Controlling

Shareholder since then.

(b)  English names for identification purpose.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

B 220129331 H 1k FE
Percentage of
Place/date of ownership interest/
Name of incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
R, ElhEERESR
WEARERE R,/ B BRTRBEER RER/HMORAESL EEEHR
2012 2011
20125 20115
Greater China Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of corporate
Corporate Consultancy & 15 November 2004 HK$1 each services and consultancy
Services Limited
EECERBERDA B AREREE R 2 R Rk A
2004117158 Rentik=galie
GCA Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
20 August 2004 HK$1 each
EESE (BR)ERDA BB 1,600,0008% 5 FR E & REER
2004584208 TETHEBR
Linkson Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Sub-leasing of office
(note (a) 3 December 1999 HK$1 each
EREERRAA (HiE@) &S 2REREE PHRBAE
199912 A3H BT ERER
Hanhua Zhenli Zi Ben The PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
Zi Xun (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 23 February 2010 HK$2,000,000 services
(note (b)) (2011: HK$200,000)
EETVEARER HE & A REFARE
B (ER)BERAF 201062A23R 2,000,000/ ¢
(20114 : 200,000 7)
Creative Market B.VI. 1 ordinary share of 100% = Investment holding
Holdings Limited 22 July 2011 US$1 each
EREAHS REREE REZR
2011%7A228 1R EBR
Notes: Bt o -

(@ ZEERERBEEARAT (—REE
AR A% SR 2 i @9 A &) 1201062 A23H
W EHIREBRAR - HAEE KX
SRR AR R I o

(b) ZFENABIERR M-

EiEEHAE
BASREGOIIEPN

TEANEEEE BE
HRES °
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B 220129331 H 1k FE

Group

rEH
2012 2011
HK$"000 HK$'000
20125 20114
FET FAT

REMKEE
DMEEEFRE
Goodwill R

Unlisted investments

Share of net assets

Impairment losses EEE

In August 2011, the Group entered into a subscription agreement and
an acquisition agreement with an independent third party to purchase
and subscribe 20% equity interest of TodaylR Holdings Limited at a
total consideration of approximately HK$26,017,000 and to acquire
simultaneously a warrant which enables the Group to exercise an
option to subscribe for 150 further ordinary shares in the associate at a

consideration of HK$1.

During the preparation of the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2011, the Group has requested for
an agreed-upon procedures report (“AUP Report”) from a firm of
professional accountants, prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-
upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” (“HKSRS 4400")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The AUP Report states that a valuation of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of TodaylR Holdings Limited, as at the date of acquisition
(the “Valuation”), has been obtained, and the initial recognition
and the disclosures of the said investment, based on the Valuation,
is in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard ("HKAS")
28 “Investments in Associates” and HKAS 34 “Interim Financial

Reporting” respectively.

4,575 =
19,139 =

23,714 =

23,714 =

R2011F8R  AEEE - BIE=T
RIS RE AW E R EAEE LR
TodayIR Holdings Limited 2 20% &4 » 424K
B/3#126,017,000/ 7T + RFRFAREE A
THREBERRER ERAAIE—F
FRHE 2 & A AR 150k FiAAR o

RREB E2011F9A8308 IEXE Az
HBBmEN AEEERZ ke —ME%
TR AERF®RE ([AERFHR
E1)  ERREDBRBEE S AGEMS
Z BB ERRISAERIZE 4400 5% [ hEI %A
BaTRERr s ZR-IE] ([F5EH
PRIEAERIZE44005% | ) iR &L - BIE R TR
51|83 2 BX S TodayIR Holdings Limited 4
BHRAHRNEEREGEZ HE([HE
Bl URBEGEZ VS ERR Elk
BHRBER DD RIKFE BB TR
(IEEg R ) 285k (R E A AR
BE | REB SR E345% [ HB B

HEl -
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B 220129F3A31H IFFZ

Accordingly, the investment was initially recognised at cost of
approximately HK$26,017,000 and the warrant was initially recognised
as fair value gain through the profit or loss at the inception date with

an amount of approximately HK$1,716,000.

During the preparation of annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012, the board of directors revisited the initial
recognition of both the associate and the warrant and observed that it
would be more appropriate to account for the initial fair value of the
warrant as an allocation from the cost of investment in the associate
and subsequently re-measured at fair value at end of each reporting
period. Accordingly, the consideration of investment in associate was

re-measured from approximately HK$26,017,000 to HK$24,301,000.

Further details of the accounting treatment of warrant at fair value

through profit or loss is set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group's associates at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

E bt - %1% B A AN £926,017,0007 7T 7]
HRRARZAREFIZN BB EZEA
REEFABRNAABERESED
1,716,000/ T ¥) A HER °

D

RmEEE20123A31 8 IEFE V%R
K EZRBEMREHZHELAIRR
BEFEONSHER THERIEETER
WAEFER ) AN EESBRE RN & &
RERERA DI REERSREHRR
BANBEENRAZ Bt REZBEED
A2 EREWK26,017,00078 T EFTAT
£ 424,301,000/ JT °

D

BRZEAREEFABRENAREEN S
ARENE-THBHRY B RRME
20 °

MR2012F3 831 BAEBEME S AR FE
mE:

Percentage of

Place of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
PEE S
A, =/
8 B BERTRAZER MEENBEAE FEXK
TodayIR Holdings Limited BVI Registered capital of 19.12%*  Investment holding
US$50,000
EBRTES & 7850,000% T REZER

IEREEEHEEBR PRC Registered capital of
BRRF* US$60,000
H & 460,000 7T

* The business licence has been suspended since 18 July 2008.
4 The Group holds warrant which entitles the Group to subscribe 150

new ordinary shares in the associate. After the exercise of the warrant,

the Group would share 26.18% ownership interest in the associate.

50% Inactive

TEEE

/AN

* BEHIRE20084F7A18HEH I

g zk;%%ﬁﬁﬁt%zks%l%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
A A1 S0R%HT E i IR ) R AR A 7E o AT
ERREEE  AEER SR E QR
26.18%FTH o



For the year ended 31 March 2012
B 220129331 H1F FE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates

according to their management financial statements is set out below:

REEEEVERRGRIAREBR LR
BB E B EEIN AT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
2012F 201148
FET FHIT
Total assets BEHRE 49,223 81
Total liabilities BfERE (26,113) (871)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (8fE)FE 23,110 (790)
Group's share of associates’ AEBHHBERARNEE,/
net assets/(liabilities) (Bf&E)FE 4,165 (395)
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
2012F 20114F
FERT FHTT
Total revenue Gk 11,347 =
Total loss for the year FEEE (855) (1
Other post-acquisition change in net assets Hih gk o BEFBE 6,927 =
6,072 (1
Group's share of associates’ profit and REESHEE R RFEENE
post-acquisition change in net assets for g1 2 BEFREE L
the year 1,146 -

On 29 February 2012, TodayIR Holdings Limited acquired a 51%
equity interest in another company at the consideration of 70 shares
and HK$2,910,000. The issue of new shares resulted in loss on
deemed disposal of partial interests in an associate of approximately
HK$1,051,000.

The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During
the year, the credit terms generally range from 7 to 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

201242 H29H ' TodayIR Holdings
LimitedA70RR AR 17 %2.2,910,0007%8 7T 2 X
BUHE SO —FE A B 251 % AAE - BATHT
A& BEURE & — & AR E D s
2 E518#91,051,0007 7T

AEEBRZFHNRXZEREIRREED
X -RER EEH-RNF7EE30AT
% o NE B 15 AR UK (O] 8 WO R IR A 5
BIRESE - ERE MBI MR
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
B F20129F3H31H 1L FE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. E Z EEWFIE (&)

AEEREZERAHNE SRR (HkR

The Group's aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date,

and net of allowance, is as follows: BRI

Group

AEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FHERT FAT
0 to 30 days 0%30H 28,012 2,719
31 to 90 days 31£90H 3,611 1,631
91 to 180 days 91£180H 6,365 868
Over 180 days #8180 1,419 425
39,407 5,643

As at 31 March 2012, an allowance was made for estimated

irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$ 1,554,000 (2011:

HK$1,316,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables for the year is set out

R2012F3A31H  AEE RGBT A
W Bl /& 5 e WK IE 491,554,000 7T
(20114F : 1,316,000 7T ) {E H B4 ©

RF RE 5 I8 R IR B 6 e E RR B 51 40

below: ™
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FHET T
Balance at the beginning of the year FAEER 1,316 1,625
Allowance for the year FEEE 493 945
Reversal upon settlement for the year FEHEAERD (255) (344)

Reversal upon write off of receivables 5[5 FE Y SR IE M S 15 #E B
for the year - (910)
Balance at the end of the year FRES 1,554 1,316
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 108
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFF &

19. TRADE RECEIVVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2012, trade receivables of approximately HK$27,950,000
(2011: HK$4,446,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a

number of independent customers to whom there is no recent history of

default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

19. EZ EWFE (5)

MR2012%F3A318 B 5 EWARIELY
27,950,000 7T (20114F : 4,446,000

TO) BRI HMERBE  ZF

RIRERE T

MY BERCENBLEFBRE ZEE

Z MR BRI D AT AT :

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

20124 20114

FBT FHT

Up to 3 months 3ME AR 20,639 3,178
3 to 6 months 3%Z618 A 6,602 973
Over 6 months HBiBE6E A 709 295
27,950 4,446

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are denominated

AEEE ZRBFORREEIA T HIEEET

in the following currencies: &:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
201245 20114
FixT T
Hong Kong dollars BT 22,660 5,087
Renminbi AR 16,747 556
Total 4t 39,407 5,643
20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. BAREEFTAEZNESHE
PROFIT OR LOSS BE
Group
AEE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
T T
Derivative, at fair value PTETERE BAREBE
Unlisted AEH 1,469 =
109 EEHERBERD A

2012 F£ %
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B 220129331 H1FFE

The carrying amount of the above financial asset is classified as follows:

PR EENKREES BT

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

20125 20114

FEx FAET

Held for trading FEEHE 1,469 =

The investment represents investment in warrant of an associate,
TodayIR Holdings Limited, acquired at a consideration of HK$1 and
such warrant enables the Group to exercise an option to subscribe
for 150 further ordinary shares in the associate, at an exercise price of
HK$87,000 per share. The associate and the warrant were acquired
simultaneously, and the warrant will expire on 16 August 2013.

The fair value of the warrant at the inception date is approximately
HK$1,716,000. During the preparation of the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2011, the Group
has requested for an AUP Report. The AUP Report states that the
Valuation of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a new associate,
TodayIR Holdings Limited, as at the date of acquisition, has been
obtained, and the initial recognition and the disclosures of the said
investment, based on the Valuation, is in accordance with HKAS 28 and
HKAS 34 respectively.

Accordingly, the Group recognised the initial fair value of the warrant
as fair value gain through the profit or loss at the inception date.

During the preparation of annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012, the board of directors revisited the initial
recognition of both the associate and the warrant and observed that
it would be more appropriate to account for the initial fair value
of the warrant as an allocation from the cost of investment in the
associate and subsequently re-measured at fair value at end of each
reporting period. Accordingly, the initial recognition of fair value gain
on an investment at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$1,716,000 as reflected in its interim and quarterly financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2011 and the nine
months ended 31 December 2011 respectively has been de-recognised
in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

£ IR & FE 7 B % 2 F] TodayIR Holdings
Limited R AR EE MR E (1A THRE
WiE) - BRI I A EIR1T(E
B T A%87,0007% 7T 17 {50 i AR 1 LA — 25
BB LI A A R 15008 X B AR o sx B
AR R R E R R I U RS - TR AR R
#72013F8 A 168 f@im °

ZRBREFHRAABERFBBBRNA
1,716,000/ 7T I AR BB 2011694
308 1E/E A 2 B B ik iy - AN E
BEEXKREEERFRE - AEETmE
ZI|BA 2 BU15 #1522 Al TodayIR Holdings
Limited R EE BB 2 AT BRI EE R B E
ZIhE ARBBRGEZ SRR B
REZRBER DTG EA G E
Bl 2858 R B A G FHAERIFE345%

At AEBKZABER Z T R AE
ERR ARG B MR EEF AR
s R EEKE-

PREEE201243A31 A L FEHMER
K EEQEFREUZHMEARRR
BBV R WERR | EEE SR
BRHERE M 125 A R BEY R E AR &
ERNRRERAN DI REER SRS
HRIZAABEEFIZ Bt REE
201149 A308 L/~ A k& =20114
12A3181IENEAR 2R B R EFE 4R
Ko B R ZIZA R BEF ABRD
BE RV RERA AEEL,716,0007
TTERBE2012F3A31 A IEFEMNZS
B TS $ Rk M EUEFER ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFF &

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

21.

PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The subsequent decrease in the fair value of the warrant from the
inception date to 31 March 2012 is approximately HK$247,000, and is
recognised in other operating expenses in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income for the year.

The Group established fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs. Major inputs into the model are as

follow:

Underlying share price HK$84,476
Interest rate 0.1782%
Volatility 31.58%
Dividend yield 3.71%
Time to maturity 1.4 years

Further details of the accounting treatment of investment in TodayIR

Holdings Limited is set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

20. BARBEFABEZNEH

EE (@)

RARAER B G A E201263A31H4
Hig R EER 2 4247,0007 7T - 7
REEREGRE PSRN EMZER S

AEBERMEIEERAEE  BFEK
BT R\ RENIT MR EBRN &
EBRATSEUR K E A LR KA E5
BERMENBIE - WAZRA 2 T REE
LI

RGBS 84,4765 7T
A= 0.1782%
A 31.58%
[ B R % 3.71%
) BA R ) 1.4%

A B TodaylR Holdings Limited#)1% & &Y
BIHRERE — PR EEH N M RER AT

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 21. RN BAE 15 FRIR
Group Company
rEE b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2012%F 20114F 20126 20114
M zE TER FHET TR FAET
Due from an intermediate FE MR R B HE AR R RIE
holding company (a) - 31,175 - -
Due from a fellow subsidiary A= NGIE S (@) - 217 - =
Due from an associate FEU —FE KT B A B ZUE (b) & (d) 382 = - =
Due from a related company JE Wi 52 S 2R iR AR R 42 61 A
under control of non-controlling — & A RIFIA
shareholders (b) & () - 26 - -
Total st 382 31,418 - =
111 BEEEHERKEBRA A

2012 F
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B 220129331 H1FFE
(@) Details of the amounts due from intermediate holding company

(b)

(0)

(d)

and a fellow subsidiary disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

(a

JRE Uit PR 2 i 2 B 5RO % [R) 2B /BB
REFREFIBRBEE L R REDIE
161BIRMEEAT

Group
AEH
Maximum
Name of amount
director having Balance at Balance at outstanding
Name beneficial interest 31 March 2012 1 April 2011 during the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2012438318 R2011F4818 FE R
=t BEEERRZNESHS HY &5 R g WENESSHE
FHET FET FHET
Intermediate holding
company:
R RRAT:
GCA Professional Services Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and - 31,175 31,175
Group Limited Mr. Leung Siu Hong
EEHERBEEBR DA EBNEERRIKEELEE
Due from a fellow subsidiary:
Bl —EERMNE AR RE:
Greater China Capital Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and - 217 217

Mr. Leung Siu Hong
EEERFRAF BRI AEERRIKEEE

= 31,392

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

repayment terms.

The amounts due from an associate and related company under
control of non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, interest-

free and have no fixed repayment terms.

The non-controlling shareholders have significant influence in the

Company.

The amount due from an associate represents dividend income

receivable.

(b)

(d)

BlREREER 28 RERTEE

TRHR

e — REIBE X B R R IF IR B R
EHEBERRRIAREER 28
N [B) 7 SE AR AR

FEEBRBERNARBREEEATE
o

& Ui — FET Bt 1% ) B R T S B B
BUYA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFF &

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND BANK AND
CASH BALANCES

The Company'’s pledged bank deposit represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Company as set out in
note 27 to the financial statements. The deposits are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and arranged at fixed interest rate of 1.3% (2011:
Nil) per annum as at 31 March 2012 and therefore expose the Group to

fair value interest rate risk.

2. CEHBRTERRBRITRR

AN SRR FE27FTE AR RIME S
IR TIERIE AR AIFTER R TE B
EMERITE IR TFR - ZZFIAB A
B W R2012463A31 B IZE T EFR1.3
B (201145 - B)FH B AEERE M A#AE
DA BEFERER -

The cash and cash equivalents are as follows: ReRBZEMET
Group Company
rEE NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114 20125 20114
FExT FHIT FEx FHT
Cash on hand FHERAS 387 17 - -
Cash at bank RITRE 36,686 8,691 6,063 =
Cash and cash equivalents RizeHeRnERNEER
in the consolidated statement of REeEEN
cash flows 37,073 8,708 6,063 -

The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

ReRkReEBYWUTIIGEEE:

currencies:
Group Company
rEE NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20126 20114 20126 20114F
TER FHET FTEx FAT
Australian dollars BT 1 1 - =
Renminbi ARE 948 187 - =
United States dollars E 261 12 - =
Hong Kong dollars BT 35,863 8,508 6,063 =
37,073 8,708 6,063 -

Conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl F20129F3H31H 1L FE

23. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

23. EZ ERIE
AEBESEMPENRRIITHT

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

20125 20114

Fi#x T

0 to 90 days 0%E90H 1,645 804
91 to 180 days 91%E180H 327 399
181 to 365 days 181%365H - -
Over 365 days tBi@365H - 139
1,972 1,342

The Group's trade payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

AEBE ZRERNFIRATIIEREE:

2012 2011

HK$"000 HK$'000

20124 20114

FExT T

Hong Kong dollars BT 1,752 1,342
Renminbi AR 220 =
1,972 1,342

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

24. FE{TRAE F RIE

Group
TEE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 201148
FHET FHT
Due to a director e EERIE - 266
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FE AT IE T AR AR 3R 3R 1B - 948
Due to a related company under common JE A-F 5242 AR AR 3R 4 (R0 45 11l A
control of the Controlling Shareholder FAE R R FIE - 7,035
- 8,249

The amounts due to a director, a non-controlling shareholder and a
related company under common control of the Controlling Shareholder

are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 114
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl 220129F3 /31 HIFF &

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

25. WEMESE

Group
rEE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BRIEAERE EEHEERENRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HKS HKS HKS HKS
20126 20114 20125 20114
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —&R 158 - 144 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF
(BEEEME) 359 = 342 =
517 - 486 -
Less: Future finance charges AR REE (31) - N/A N/A
TEH TiE A
Present value of lease obligations HEAENRE 486 - 486 -
Less: Amount due for settlement within ~ J& : + =18 B A (#7038
12 months (shown under current (M BRBEE)
liabilities) (144) -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months +— {8 A 1% %4 2 %18 342 -

It is the Group's policy to lease out certain motor vehicles under finance
lease. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At the end
of each lease term, the Group has the options to purchase the motor
vehicle at nominal prices. The average lease term is 4 years. At 31
March 2012, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.1% (2011:
Nil). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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HEMK AEEERNEREEEE
RE - FHHEH A MF - 712012463 A
318 FHEREEER3.1% (20114
T) cHRFRTIREHBHERE - ARE
BAEAENABENEERR -

PBERNBEEERIRLAETEE

REEXRBEERD A
2012 F



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥R AR Y R E

For the year ended 31 March 2012
Bl F20129F3H31H 1L FE

26.

27.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

DEFERRED TAX

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of temporary differences is immaterial to

the Group.

The Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$10,820,000
(2011: HK$2,897,000) at 31 March 2012 available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$3,373,000 (2011: Nil) that will expire in 2017. Other tax losses may

be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in subsidiaries

and associate are insignificant.

BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 March 2012, the Group had banking facilities in respect of bank
overdraft of approximately HK$2,000,000 (2011: Nil). The Group’s
banking facilities were secured by the pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$1,000,000 of the Group.
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26.

27.

i 3E B 1]

MREREERNRBZENAKREMS
B RE R SRR A E AR E
HFHREE -

ANE@MP201243 A31 B Al K 85 R 0
89 R B R B TE B 18 49./510,820,00078 7T
(20114F : 2,897,000 7T ) © SRR A= F
Db OB N W i A o e =
BRERELERIEEE - AR IEEEF
B 5 720174 JiE i ) &5 18 493,373,000
BT (20114« F) - KT IR ES1E AT R

ES)SERIEEPNCIPNE LN k= o i e k=)
ERUEZEBM A TE

o

RITEERE

M201293A31H - AEEHBRTE
X W R 1715 B % E 4 52,000,000/ 7T
Q01MEF:F) - AEEHRITEEHEL
BB IRTT1F 541,000,000 7T VEHF
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BZ2012F3431H1LFZ
Number of
shares Amount
HK$
R EE ]
BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FRREE0.01% 7T (20114 :
(2011: HK$0.01) each 0.0187T) W E B
On incorporation and AR D AVAIE N
at 31 March 2011 R201143A31H (@) 38,000,000 380,000
Increased on 18 May 2011 2011458188 &1 (b)(i) 1,962,000,000 19,620,000
At 31 March 2012 20126 3A31H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SRR E0.0178 7T (20114 :
(2011: HK$0.01) each 0.01/87T) W & B
On incorporation and AR IDAVAIE YN
at 31 March 2011 7201143 A31H (@) 1 =
Issue of shares as consideration PR D A AR T AT
for the transfer of entire KBRS
shareholding (b)(ii) 999 10
Issue of shares by way of LA 19 7 (B BR B AL Y
capitalisation of share premium ARBITRG
account (b)(iii) 374,999,000 3,749,990
Issue of shares by way of placing VAR & 77 A TR (D (0) 125,000,000 1,250,000
At 31 March 2012 M2012%3H31H 500,000,000 5,000,000

Note: Bt :

(@) The Company was incorporated on 3 December 2010 with an (@ ARAAIR2010F12A38 F ML - 7%
authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 TE % 7K £3380,0007% 7T 9 738,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, one share was allotted &R EE0.01TETTHRG, - RE B
and issued as fully paid to the initial subscriber and transferred B REABIEE RBETIRE R R
to Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company controlled by the 7 WHEE T ZIERRRZES A A

Controlling Shareholder. Brilliant One Holdings Limited ©
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Note: (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder passed on
18 May 2011:

(i) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of an additional
1,962,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each;

(i) 999 shares of HK$0.01 each was issued on 18 May 2011 in
exchange for the entire shareholdings of Fidelia Investments
Limited and New Valiant Limited, pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation; and

(i) a total of 374,999,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued as fully paid at par to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on the register of
members of the Company on 17 May 2011 conditional on
fulfilment of the conditions as stated in the paragraph headed
“Conditions of the Placing” in the section headed “Structure
and conditions of the Placing” in the Prospectus and subject to
the share premium account of the Company being credited as a

result of new shares issued by way of placing on 31 May 2011.

On 31 May 2011, 125,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
at a price of HK$0.72 by way of placing, before related expenses of
HK$90,000,000. The excess over the par value of the shares issued
was credited to the share premium account.

The share capital presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2011 represented the entire nominal value
of the issued and paid up share capital of Greater China Appraisal
Limited, Greater China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited,
GCA Holdings Limited, Asset-Plus Global Limited and Linkson

Investment Limited.

Fiat: (&)

(b)

R —IRFMN20114E5 A 18H @BH

EHEREE:

(i) BBIEREEII1,962,000,0008%
BREEC.BITMRD  AAF]
B /% 7€ AR 7 ©3380,0007% 7T 15 AN
%20,000,000/ 7T ;

(i) REBEEEEFH R2011565818
H 817999/ & X [ {80.0178 7T
/3% 15 LAR EXFidelia Investments
Limited & New Valiant Limited#) %
HORRAE : &

(i) FHRRERAEESTENERER
Rt ] — &0 [BCE SIEMEM] —
ER Pl MG (R K 18 R PA2011
F5A31A AR E 5 A BT
FEARARGD = ERNGER
% #54 $£374,999,0000% & B% E
H0.01B TR M B IR DB R 2
TF20114ESF170 & 254
R BT AR R AR R & A A%
Ho

2011458318 » 125,000,0000% &
AREE0.018 T A AR 15 LA B & 77 2\ 1%
0.727 TR ER BT - MR AB R AT
FfT 15 5738 90,000,000 7T © #8 ) B 3%
TRMHEENBO ARKRD SER-

M20114E3 A31 B RE ISR & 2
PRI AT EE T ERR AT EER
XRBBRAR EZEEE (ER)A
fR A &) * Asset-Plus Global Limited %15
RIEEBRARE BT RAEREH
ZEPEE-
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The Group manages its capital to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to maximise the return to its shareholders, to protect the interests
of its shareholders, safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to be able to service its debts when they are due. In order
to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment, obtain various forms of debt/
equity financing available in the market at an appropriate cost when

necessary.

Management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. As a
part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

The Group'’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group is
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float

of at lease 25% of the shares.

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

AEEERHEEN UHEFEREARE
B RERRWMEERAL R REELKRR
A BRARESELLEURA
MERS B B (IR FRIE o B#E R E DI
BERERS AEBAERBERNKRES
B REFERASERAETHRES
BRANER,RARE -

EEERFENEAGE -BEHREE
JEE BEARA R &R E A 7 6 [ B o
REE REBIRA BR  FAREETT A R B
THEBABEEREER FaEEREE
R EERE

RE

i

MBRRBENAFERFT & -
R ER B 4 15 EL A B X P T b AL Y D —

INER R B EARE KA NEBARFEELD
25% D BARFERE -

(a) ~&KHE

AEENRBEEREEINES
PHRERRGEREEHRAZE

5l -
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(b) Company (b) 22 H]
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share payment retained
premium reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LRHBER (RitER)/
1R E MRS REEF st
FHET FHT THET FET
Loss for the period, at 31 March 2011 A 8 &18 - K20114F3H31H
and 1 April 2011 R2011F4818 - - ©) M
Share issued under the capitalisation 1R & & AL #4747 D
issue (3,750) - - (3,750)
Share issued pursuant to placing BIEREEEETRG 88,750 = = 88,750
Share placing expenses MR e & R (13,532) = = (13,532)
Recognition of share-based payments JAR& {7 2 E i &9+ ZURE R - 3,296 - 3,296
Transfer of share-based payments #EZHEE FES ~
relating to the share reward to A B2 AR D BEE Z
employees R - (2,956) 2,956 -
Profit for the year REE G - = 2,183 2,183
At 31 March 2012 72012%3A31H 71,468 340 5,138 76,946

(9]

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Foreign currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations as well as the effective
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising from
hedges of the net investment in these foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note 3(e)(iii) to the financial statements.

() MEMEEREN

@

S 5 B AL 1

[E 3 {8 B FE MR B HNE 2E 75
BREREANMANEZR
ARERZ S NI TSR E T
BELANTMINEZENE X
BB o % 5 4 AR 4R B 5 R 2% BT
FE3(e)i) P & AT R BRI -
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() REMERBN (5)
(i) Capital reserve i) BEXHEH

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the original
investment costs in the Greater China Appraisal Limited
and GCA Holdings Limited incurred by the Group, (ii) the
non-controlling interests in the retained profits of Greater
China Appraisal Limited and GCA Holdings Limited acquired
by GCA Professional Services Group Limited upon a group
reorganisation in 2010, and (iii) the difference of the cost
of 999 ordinary shares issued in exchange for the entire
shareholdings of Fedelia Investments Limited and New
Valiant Limited and the nominal value of issued and paid
up shares of the subsidiaries existed immediately before the

Group Reorganisation.

(iii) Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

(iv) Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents (i) the fair value
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 3(o) to the financial
statements and (ii) the fair value of 16,425,000 shares of the
Company placed down by Brilliant One Holdings Limited,
the immediate holding company of the Company, to reward
certain members of the senior management team of the

Company on 9 January 2012.

AEENEARFEEOAEE
REEFEERA A RIEE
S8 (ZER)ERAAIEAER
RIGEKA  (I)EEFERD
EEBERAAMN2010F5£H
BHZWNEZETEBRAT
MEESE (ZER)ERAF
YR B8 Ve M) ) FE 128 Il 1 A A
R (iii)E& 17999 3 3 AR LA 3R EY
Fidelia Investments Limited}
New Valiant Limited 2 2 2P % ##
Bk A R EE B S AR TR
HME A RE ET R RN
EEZHERE-

(iii) JR 1 it 1R

REMASHESRENE ARA
Bt ERPESADRN T
A AR - HE TR BR B B IR A
S RAME KRRABRENE
NEBEBBREDINHENZ
B e

(iv) LLRRG 25 RENT 1 3 e i

VAR 17 7% ZE 5 B 1 SR 4 (1)
RAE B2 ERAN G B8 B 5 s R MY 5
Bo)TE R A E UKD B
EWON RSB RERE T
AEBEREE ZERAMGER
THERREHENRAEE:
RGNAR B EEZER AT
Brilliant One Holdings Limited
B F516,425,0008% B2 10 &) A 72
BB LAR2012F1 BOR £ E
ARAETEREERE BB

i

o

’
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Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time employees, officers, directors of the Company and
the Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 18 May
2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force

for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

S E R ER S

ARARRMERETE ([5rE1)) B
HASEKSELEMNAER2BELR
TRERER - FEZEERDEERS
RARRARARIMBARINZHBES 17
WABRESE 5T8IMR201165H180 &
B REBRIEA ST RIS BN B A
B %A BT EI0F AR -

o

IRIRETBIFTER TR A R 1T 2 B RR
BEa8E  NMIERSBERASNEAAR
ERIFREE EITRD E910% ° AEMR12{E
AHHREA - 5 EIMEE K2 HBENER
RN HEE B R AN AR 3
TR 2 1% o (E [ — PR B B ULR
il BB AR R IR T B AR SR A & B AR R Bt
- HAMERE o

BFARAIES BHRTBEEREER
Rl E 2 A B AOBRE BE5%
RBYUNITERNIE  FAIER I
Oh IERNI2ME R ZHIBA - R FARQA
FERFRAB IR TET R E 2 EM
BB A 2 (R REARAE - MR IR AR A AR
RIS TR 20.1% B E (RERDY
& BARREIRMD 2 B ) #385,000,000%
T RAEERRRARSEGREE 7
AERE-
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the

Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date

of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote

at shareholders’” meetings.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant Exercise period

EREENERESTE (8

REFL CBRETRELEREF21R
NER MERARAXNEHIETZR
BARE -AIROBREZITENRES
B XhETHRERERG mEHBE
HITNSB N IR 2 BAE B IR 1 0F skiat
EzEmBE B (ARFEERE) -

HBRENTEERESETE BTN
UT=FRz&m®: (EREXEER
RN TRRAD B S AT A IR T (B - R (i) B 8
I E BRI AR 5 B AR RGBS
FTRI U TTE R (DA A B IR HRAE Y
HEAZEE-

R B T E A AMERELE SR i

RREEREZHERN-

ERIERIRBRE 2 FE BT

Exercise price

HK$

i B TR TEE

BT

Option A1 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BERRAEA 201241 H6H H201295818H =20214F5H17H 0.20% 7T
Option A2 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BARREA2 201241 A6H B201295H188 2021458 17H 0.20/8 7T
Option A3 6 January 2012 From 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BIREA3 201241 A6H B201245H18H £202145717H 0.20%8 7T
Option B1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
& I B 201241 H6H B201241A30HZ=202145A17H 0.20%8 7T
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

Exercise period

A

HERERESTE ()

Exercise price

HK$

B AH TS TEEE

BT

Option B2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
fE R B2 201241 H6H B2013F1 18 E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option B3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
B #EB3 201241 A6H B2014F1 818 E202145H178 0.20/%8 7T
Option C1 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BRRAECT 201241 A6H 2012414308 £20214F5A17H 0.20 7T
Option C2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
B REC2 201241 H6H B2013F1 818 E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option D1 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
HEAHED 201241 A6H B201297A18E2021458178 0.20/%8 7T
Option D2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
B D2 201241 A6H H2013F1 18 £2021F5H17H 0.20 7T
Option D3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
fE D3 201241 H6H B2014F1 18 E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option E1 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
HBAKIEET 201241 A6H B2013F1 818 E2021458178 0.20/%8 7T
Option E2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BB HEE2 201241 A6H B2014F1 818 £2021F5H17H 0.20% 7T
Option E3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
IR HEE3 201241 H6H B2015F1 18 E20214F58178 0.20% 7T
Option F 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
HB AR 201241 A6H B201267A18E2021458178 0.20/%8 7T
Option G 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BIREG 201241 A6H H2013F1 818 £2021F5H817H 0.20% 7T
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Date of grant

Exercise period

EoEENERESTE (8

Exercise price

HK$

RE Y TR TEE

BT

Option H 6 January 2012 From 30 January 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
i A EH 201241 H6H B201241H308 £202145817H 0.20% 7T
Option 11 6 January 2012 From 1 July 2012 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BN 201241 A6H B201247A1B£202145/17H 0.207 7T
Option 12 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
B2 201241 A6H B2013F1 18 £E202145H178 0.207& 7T
Option 13 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
FERRAEI3 201241 H6H B2014F1 1822021458171 0.20% 7T
Option J1 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2013 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
BB 201241 A6H B201351 A1B£202145/17H 0.207 7T
Option J2 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2014 to 17 May 2021 HK$0.20
B2 201241 A6H B201451 18 £E2021458178 0.207& 7T
Option J3 6 January 2012 From 1 January 2015 to 7 May 2021 HK$0.20
HERRAE)3 201241 H6H B2015%F1 818 Z=2021F5A7H 0.20% 7T

i 8 PO HE B % B R RE R0 HA R )
ARETTE - B REER - iR B R IEK
REEABEREASE BIBRES TR
W o

If the options remain unexercised after the expiry date of the Scheme a
period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Options

are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

RaAENBRESS (2)
ER - HRITH 2 BREFETT

2012 2011
20125 20115
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share options  exercise price  share options  exercise price
HK$ HK$
mEF INEFH
BRERE THE  BREHE 17128
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning of RE HARITEE

the year - - - -
Granted during the year RE AL 9,850,000 0.20 = =

Forfeited during the year RERKRK (120,000) 0.20 =
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ R FE R KR1T1E 9,730,000 0.20 - -
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAITEE 2,970,000 0.20 = =

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$0.20. The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 9 years (2011: Nil) and the exercise price is HK$0.20
(2011: Nil). In 2012, options were granted on 6 January. The estimated
fair value of the options on that date is approximately HK$912,000.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The inputs into the model are as follows:

RERNBATHE 2 BIRENTTE B EZ M
TR E R0.20/8 7T - RER M ARITHE
BRI 2 TR E DFERRIF
(20115 : F) RITEE R0.20/% 7T (2011
F:F) 720124 - BARE I A6
e BRERZ AR Z A AREBENA
912,000 7T

ZERABETIRAB N — TR HE
EERAGFE - AZEAZBENT

}

2012 2011

20125 201148

Weighted average share price nwEFE R E HK$0.1967% T -
Weighted average exercise price INREFHITEE HK$0.205& 7T -
Expected volatility T8 2R 1R 58.74% =
Expected life T8 HA 5 2 EA 9.37 yearsf -
Risk free rate 18 [ f 1.49% -
Expected dividend yield T8 HA AR B i a2 2.398% =
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Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility
of share prices of comparable companies with shares listed on the
Stock Exchange and engaged in the similar business of the Group.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
Group's best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The fair value of the options will be amortised over the vesting period
and expensed in the profit or loss.

Other equity-settled share-based payments

On 9 January 2012, the immediate holding company, Brillion One
Holdings Limited, placed down 16,425,000 shares of the Company
to reward certain members of the senior management team of the
Company. The Company has recognised the share-based payment at
the bid price of the grant date of HK$0.18 per share.

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, interim dividend payable of HK$30,000,000 (2011:
HK$11,000,000) declared by certain subsidiaries was set off against the
amount due from an intermediate holding company.

Additions to property, plant and equipment during the year of
approximately HK$647,000 (2011: Nil) were financed by finance leases.

During the year, the associate TodayIR Holdings Limited has declared
interim dividend. The Group is entitled an amount of approximately
HK$682,000, of which only HK$300,000 has been settled during the
year. The remaining unsettled amount of approximately HK$382,000 is
included in amounts due from related parties.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

B AENERETE (8

TRHDR 8 TR BAR D IO B 22 P BT A SR
AEBRURK 2B RRARZBELZ
RS2 R W T AT S E o AR R 2 TR
BERHERBERER T AIER  TER
HRITREBZFE 2 REMBHELT

o

BREZ AABESNEBHAEHEL R
BaE -

HttREEEURDBERN

o
TA

72012461 A9R - B £ /R 2 FBrillion
One Holdings Limited)#%516,425,0004% 48
ANEIRG WREARFE TaREEE
EARK B - R A RIEREBRIRG N E B
HAZ 33801878 T R UA MR (0 BT Y -

N
A °©

EXFBRERS

FR - HETHBRARMEIRZERF AR
£.30,000,0007% 7T (20114F : 11,000,000
BT B EEER —ERNERA R 2K
Ho

REARNRNEYE B FE K& HE%647,000
B QONME T)HMERERT -

A - B /2 A] TodayIR Holdings Limited &,
Tk HIRE - AR 5 [ = B 49682,00078
JTHY SR IE - H 9 {£ F300,0007% 7T B R F
RIE 1 o 82 T oK 18 - ZUIE £9382,00078 7T
ThEt N FE M BB 5 5k 0E

M2012%3A31H AEB W EEFAEKR
HARBE
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33.

34.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any significant capital

commitments.

33. EAREE

R2012F3A318  AEBEWELMER
BARESE-

LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. HE AR
As at 31 March 2012, the Group's total future minimum lease 20129 3A31H  AE B R A HUH &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as EHE R EN R R EEEFRIBRTE
follows: T:
Group
AEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20124 20114
FTHET FAET
Within one year —FR" 3,455 3,613
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_FEFAF(REEEMTE) 1,045 2,758
4,500 6,371
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for KEMERBEASEREETHAE
certain of its offices and photocopier machines. Leases are negotiated R IR R € - K RERE E r91H HA
for terms ranging from one to five years and rentals are fixed over the NF—ERFAE BN HEBREET
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals. B W rBERRES -
At 31 March 2012 the total future minimum lease receivable under M2012F3A318 - R A BEKE EHE
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: TH YR R AR E IR T
Group
AEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114
FTHET FHT
Within one year —FR" 1,630 2,11
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEFERF (BEEERTF) - 1,630
1,630 3,741

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the Group
for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of
three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include

contingent rentals.

198
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with its related parties during the year:

BI5.BERRS

BTSRRI A £ T R BT R
S RAEHI  AEBRENRIBESHN
TR

Name of directors and related parties having

beneficial interest in the transaction 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
RREFECEERENESREB LS 20124 20114
FET FHET
Asset appraisal services income
from related companies
KB RBERFNEENERA
— Path Immigration Consultant Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong
Limited - 24
—HEBRERARA A BRI &
— Greater China Capital Limited ~ Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) - 197
—EEELRFRAF BRI A RIREAER
|ZBREAE (a)
Corporate services and consultancy
income from related companies
KERERTNEERS &
AU A
— Greater China Capital Limited ~ Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) 616 600

—REEARBRAF B A RIKERER
T Z5RITAE (a)
129

REEXRBEERD A
2012 %R
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B E2012F3H31H 1 FE
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 5. BEFRXS (&)
Name of directors and related parties having
beneficial interest in the transaction 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
RREGPEEBERENESREBH LR 20124 20114
FHT FHET
— GCA Professional Services Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong and
Group Limited Mr. Wong Chi Keung (a) - 360
—ZEEERBEEBBR AT FEEEE BRKEEER
|2 ® L (a)
— TodayIR (Hong Kong) Limited TodayIR Holdings Limited (b) 333 -

Rent paid to related companies
ENEEARES

— Path Immigration Consultant Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong
Limited - 73
— g% RERM AR DA EREEE

Subcontracting charges and
commission paid to related
parties

ENEERSBERMEE

— Mr. Leung Siu Hong (included in - Mr. Leung Siu Hong

directors’ emoluments) - 1
—RKREEE RIERE

(BEtAZEEZHM)

— Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (included ~ Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong

in directors’” emoluments) 7 213
—EERELE ERNTE

(BEFAZEEFHM)

(@) Mr. Wong Chi Keung is a non-controlling shareholder having () BrRALTERHASEEEAFE

significant influence to the Group. TR P B AR R o
(b)  TodaylR Holdings Limited is an associate of the Group. (b) TodaylIR Holdings Limited &7~ £ & &Y
/NG
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
B F20129F3H31H 1L FE

35.

36.

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The key management personnel compensation paid by the Group is

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 June 2012, the Company proposed to declare a final dividend of
HK1 cent (2011: Nil) per ordinary share to its shareholders, as further

detailed in note 14 to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 25 June 2012.

131

35.

36.

37.

BEIRS #)

AEBCNTIEEREAENMESR I
AR FE1 29K 5

BEHREH

MR2012F6 8258 AR Al @ EmHERKRRE
TR AR B9 A% B &A% I @ AR 1B (L (2011
FF) E—SHFBHART B RERWE
14 o

HEFHRE

MR R2012F6 H25HEE =gt
R AR T

EEEERBHRD
2012 F



A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last four financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and the prospectus dated 25 May 2011 is set out below.

Fer 8 B FIE 2 K& EBZI I IHRE L H201145
A258 FIZERYRA%

SREAASEER B AN @M

BEENFEREEALBEREHIIMT -

Year ended 31 March

disclosed as consolidated financial statements for the Group have not been
prepared for this year.

The summary of the combined results of the Group for each of the two
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 and of the assets and liabilities as
of 31 March 2009 and 2010 have been extracted from the Company’s
listing prospectus dated 25 May 2011. Such summary was prepared as
if the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout
these financial years and is presented on the basis as set out in note 3(b)
to the audited consolidated financial statements. The audited results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the audited assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2012 are those set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

BE3ANALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114 20104 20094
FHET FHET FHET FHET
RESULTS B4
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND KRABHEE A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FEAEFEm A
THE COMPANY 10,323 25,427 26,727 2,799
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
A38318
2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20125 20114 20104 20094
FHRT FHET FHET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 109,735 52,899 43,165 14,482
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (13,322) (16,558) (17,866) (5,542)
96,413 36,341 25,299 8,940
Note: The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2008 was not — [ffat: BIERZEE Z200843H31H I F/EAI5]

BEF - [F 352 F B IR 5N F g R
BHBEHE -

7K 2E [ B 2 2009 K 20103 531 H 1F
B [Z 5 F 896 GF Z A Z L R 2009
FR2010F3H31 AR EER B (EE 77
BN F BB 52011465250 89_F 7
JREFE o ZFZ B 20 40 7 55 (B 3 by 9 32
BREEZZH R FEEAN—EFERE
P IEAE B AR B T TSR Z I a2 3(b) AT # A
HEZ Flfo KEBREF2012F3H31H
I FERIAEF R R R A EER2012F3
H31HEjAE R EER B &R EE
HEBHRE -

K _EBEEI T B F Ay & SRR
*uﬁﬂ



GreaterChina Professional Services Limited

= Z2 H Xk B R L 3

www.gca.com.hk

Room 2703, 27" Floor, Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

ERETEEEC-SRHEERIN27182703E

Tel & &% : +852 2511 6868 Fax & K :+852 2511 6161
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